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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-6110 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 6738
Katja S. Fox Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Director www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas/

August 4, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavior Health, Bureau
of Drug and Alicohol Services, to enter into agreements with the vendors listed below for the provision.
of drug and alcohol misuse prevention through Student Assistance Programs at the middie and high
school levels, in an amount not to exceed $1,057,509, upon date of Governor and Council approval,
through June 30, 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor Code Location Amount

Farmington, SAU #61 160001 Farmington $200,000
Franklin, SAU #18 159863 Franklin $200,000
Laconia, SAU #30 177420 Laconia $199,990
Monadnock Family Services 177510 Keene $68,940
Raymond, SAU #33 159945 Raymond $199,955
Second Start 177224 Concord $188,624

TOTAL: $1,057,509

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year
2019, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PFS2
GRANT.
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Farmington School District, SAU#61, Vendor Code: 160001-B001

State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $100,000
2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $100,000
Subtotal $200,000
Franklin School District, SAU #18, Vendor Code: 159994-B001
State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $100,000
2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $100,000
Subtotal $200,000
Laconia School District, SAU #30, Vendor Code: 177420-B001
State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 99,995
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 99,995
Subtotal $199,990
Monadnock Family Services, Vendor Code: 177510-B001
State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $36,762
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $32,178
Subtotal $68,940
Raymond School District, SAU #33, Vendor Code: 159945-B001
State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 99,965
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 99,990
Subtotal $199,955
Second Start, Vendor Code: 177224-B002
State
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
Year
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 94312
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $ 94,312
Subtotal $ 188,624
FY18 TOTAL $ 531,034
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FY19 TOTAL $ 526,475
GRAND TOTAL: | $1,057,509

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to enter into contracts with six (6) vendors for the provision of
direct prevention services to students between the seventh (7™ and twelfth (12th) grades.

Although the State has seen some improvements, there continue to be communities of high
need where prevalence of substance use is higher than the state average which has increased over
time. In these communities, progress has been slower and more challenged by local conditions
including limited resources; fewer opportunities for youth; and less success in addressing substance
misuse among youth.

The purpose of the Student Assistance Program (SAP) is to increase the State's existing
prevention system's resources and capacities to reduce substance abuse and misuse in communities
with ‘high need, high risk’ populations. Specifically, SAP services address:

1) underage drinking among persons aged 12 to 20; and

2) prescription drug misuse and abuse and illicit opioid misuse and abuse among persons aged
12 to 25, in ‘high need, high risk’ populations in New Hampshire.

‘High need, high risk’ populations are local communities such as, cities/towns/schools/college
campuses that show their population’s prevalence rates for alcohol and/or other drugs misuse are
higher than the New Hampshire's state average prevalence rates by using the prevalence rate data
from the 2013 or 2015 Youth Risk Behavior Survey' or the 2014 National Survey on Drug Use and
Health reports or similar data.

These vendors were selected through a competitive bid process. A Request for Applications
was posted on the Department’s website from November 18, 2016 through January 24, 2017. The
Department received eighteen (18) applications, which were reviewed and scored by a team of
individuals with specific knowledge and experience of the population served and their needs. The six
applications with the highest scores were selected. Score Summary is attached.

The Contractors will conduct alcohol and other drug screenings, individual support sessions,
group support sessions and referrals to drug and alcohol treatment providers when indicated by the
screening. The Contractors will provide students and parents with targeted drug and alcohol education
to improve understanding of risks associated with prescription drug use and underage alcohol use as
well as the developmental milestones of adolescences. The Contractors will also incorporate
community-level media strategies as well as other approaches shown to impact the culture and overall
wellbeing of the community.

Vendors are required to contribute a twenty-five percent (25%) funding match unless the area
served exceeds the state average for free or reduced lunches. The match requirement is intended to
ensure school administration buy-in and sustainability of the program once the grant funding ends.

These agreements include language in Exhibit C-1 that reserves the Department’s right to
exercise renewal options for up to two (2) additional years contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the contracts:
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e Vendors must maintain a 90% response rate of pre- and post-assessments that will be
conducted prior to and after receiving Student Assistance Program services.

e Vendors will ensure a minimum of 50% of responders to the post-assessments described
above will have an unfavorable attitude toward drugs and alcohol.

e Vendors will ensure a minimum of 75% of responders to the post-assessments will agree that
participation in SAP activities had a positive impact on how to effectively deal with peer
pressure.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, an undetermined number
of students who have drug and alcohol abuse issues may not receive support and education during
critical transitional school years. Lack of these support services may result in an increase prevalence
rate of underage drinking and drug use, as well as the misuse and abuse of prescription medication.

Area served: Farmington High School, Franklin High School, Laconia High School, Keene
Middle School, Raymond High School, Hillsboro-Deering Middie School, Concord High School, and
Rundlett Middle School located in Concord, NH

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse Prevention,
CFDA #93.243 FAIN #SP020796

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

e
Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by: ﬂwj i

Jeffrfey A. 'Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruvices’ Mission is to join communities and families
in prouviding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

! www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/hsdm/yrbs.htm




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring_] Sheet

Student Assistance Prog_;ram RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE
RFA Name RFA Number Reviewer Names
1. Paul Kiernan
- Maximum Actual
Bidder Name Pass/Fail Points Points 2. Ann Crawford
1 Conway SD SAU#9 150 106 3 Jill Burke
2 Dover SD SAU#11 150 123 4.
3. Farmington SD SAU#61 150 128 5.
4 Franklin SD SAU#18 150 128 6.
5 Groveton HS SAU#58 150 110 7.
6. Kearsarge Regional SD SAU#65 150 127 8.
7- Laconia SD SAU#30 150 135 s.
8.
Manchester SD SAU#37 150 103
9.
Monadnock Family Services, Keene SD 150 139
10.
North Country Health Cnsrt, Berlin MS, Haverhill CMS 150 117
11.
Petham SD 150 87
12.
Pinkerton Academy 150 100
13.
Portsmouth SD 150 103
14.
Ramond SD SAU#33 150 128
15.
Second Start, Concord HS 150 135
16. White Mountains Regional SD SAU#36 150 113
17 White Mountains SD SAU#35 150 99
18. Winnisquam Regional SD SAU#59 150 115




Subject: i ¢ Pro A- -BD. -

FORM NUMBER P-37 {version 5/8/15)

Natice: This agreement and all of its sttachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Exccutive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified (o the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutuslly egree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stete Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
School Administrative Unit #61 Farmington School District

1.4 Contractor Address
60 Charles Street
Farmington NH 03835

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number - 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 315 A
603-755-2627 05-95-49-491510-2407-102- June 30, 2019 $200,000.00
500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonethen V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603.271-9246
1.11 Contractor Signatyre 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
: B “Hatheenaugha, Suponadordant
. Shfe!
113 Acknowledgement: State of (Y (4 , Countyof % AFre!)

Bl ]17

indicated in block 1,12,

, before the undcrstgned officer, personally appeared the person identifimld
proven to be the person whose neme is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he eyl e

gock 1. 12, or satisfactorily
poient in the capsacity

1.13.]1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.14 State Agency ngnature

J - LWE" T—7‘~ Duu:g/3 \—7

1.15 Name and Title of Sta(c gency Signatory

Wy S f'é;( Wb

By:

1,16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persond (if applicable)

Director, On:

By:

iy

117 Approval by the Attorney General {Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

On;

yataly:

By:

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Ixccutive Council (if applicable)

On:
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Student Assistance Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

School Administrative Unit #61 Farmington School District 60 Charles Street
Farmington NH 03835

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-755-2627 05-95-49-491510-2407-102- June 30, 2019 $200,000.00
500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

3 it Etlen laughn, W‘%ﬁ

1.11 Contractor Signatyre

113 Acknowledgement: State of Y/ [-f , County of S\'.,r A FF@P’)

on B }l / /7 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person ident{'mm,%;)ck 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he &3 ) hig,

indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace $N DX
~ g i oe%‘.'f{"fos, -
[Seal] ALy M v LU z % °G,' i §
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ’{,@);..4,," P\,g\.;.' N
”’ H""luoci"é&\\\\\
g AMPSYL
1.14 State Agency Signature , 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Yo 2 Foe paB30T [V S FoX Dy i

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

%W/VWJ\W/J | Mfwww/ o 7{7| D

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuancé of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a neductlon pr termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the tight to withhold
payment until such fuhds become availablg, if ever, and shall
have the right to termmatc thlS Agreqment 1mmed1ately upon
giving the Contractor ndm;e of glich iermmn’tlon The State
shall not be required to transYequnds.from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and! guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor fiirther agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the piupose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10, TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1.  Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall increase the State's existing prevention system
including, but not limited to, its resources and capacities to reduce substance
abuse and misuse in communities with high need and/or high risk populations
of:

1.3.1.  Underage drinking among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty (20),
and high risk for persons aged twenty-one (21) to twenty-five (25);

1.3.2. Prescription drug misuse and abuse, and illicit opioid misuse and
abuse among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty-five (25).

1.4. The Contractor shall hire one full-time student assistance program (SAP)
counselor who shall:

1.4.1. Work 37.5 hours per week throughout the school year.

1.4.2. Maintain office hours during the summer months on a flexible
schedule, as approved by the Department.

1.4.3. Become a Certified Prevention Specialist no later than twelve (12)
months from the contract effective date.

1.44. Attend community forums, which include, but not limited to,
Farmington Responds — A Circle of Hope Initiative.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall screen individuals referred to the program, using the
guidance provided by the Department and an evidenced based screening tool
as recommended by NAMI-NH that includes an assessment of the individual,
family, substance use issues, and whether a referral to treatment is
appropriate. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Submit the evidenced based screening tool to be used to the
Department for approval within thirty (30) days of the contract
effective date.
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2.1.2. Refer individuals to community treatment providers, as appropriate.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct individual and group sessions, as appropriate,
which include but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Conducting individual support sessions, as needed, with the purpose
of crisis intervention or to motivate students in participating in groups
modeled after Project Success.

2.2.2. Conducting individual sessions as needed to assist students with:

2.2.2.1. ldentifying and resisting social and situational pressures to
use substances.

2.2.2.2. Correcting misperceptions about the prevalence and
acceptability of substance use.

2.2.2.3. Focusing on the personal consequences of substance
misuse and abuse.

2.2.24. Practicing resistance and coping skills.

2.2.2.5. Identifying barriers to using the newly developed skills or
adopting healthy attitudes.

2.2.3. Conduct the Newcomers Group, the Children of Substance Misusing
Parents Group and a Seniors Group beginning in year one and
expanding new groups in additional years as funding will allow that
are modeled after Project Success, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.2.3.1. Alcohol and other Drug Assessment Education Group
2.2.3.2. Sibling Group

2.2.3.3. Non-Users Group

2.23.4. Parents, Peers, and Partying Group

2.2.3.5. Users Group

2.2.3.6. Users/Children of Substance Misusing Parents Group
2.2.3.7. Recovery Group.

2.3. The Contractor shall administer pre- and post-assessments that measure
student attitudes toward drugs and alcohol to determine and monitor the
effectiveness of the Student Assistance Program and measure the impact of
student groups which include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Children of Substance Misusing Parents/Caregivers Group;
2.3.2. Senior Group.
24. The Contractor shall administer annual surveys, and provide results of the
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surveys, during the period of March through May, which include but are not
limited to:

24.1. The Youth Risk Behavior Survey of all students in grades nine (9)
through twelve (12).

2.42. The Department provided survey for grades seven (7) through eight
(8).
25. The Contractor shall provide education sessions and/or materials, as

approved by the Department, to individuals and or groups, that may include,
but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Parent/caregiver education regarding prescription drug misuse,
underage drinking and binge drinking, within the school and
community.

2.5.2. Alcohol and other drug prevention education in middle school or high
school, using evidence based curriculum, such as Project Alert,
during seventh and ninth grade transitional years that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Adolescent alcohol, tobacco and other drug information.
2.5.2.2. Family Dynamics and pressures.
2.5.2.3. Skills for coping with stress and life pressure.

2.6. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school/community
centered environmental strategies that broadly reach populations within the
school and community and focus on alcohol and other drug prevention
messaging, including but not limited to:

2.6.1. Initiating health and wellness activities within the school buildings.
2.6.2. Participating in Red Ribbon Week activities.

2.6.3. Brainstorming ideas with student volunteers, which may result in
improvements for the school and the community.

2.7. The Contractor shall increase school and community awareness of the
Student Assistance Program services through media and marketing including
but not limited to print media and social media, which may include, but is not
limited to Facebook and Instagram in partnership with Department identified
organizations, including but not limited to the Partnership for a Drug Free NH.

2.8. The Contractor shall announce the intentions of the Student Assistance
Program in collaboration with community partners in their area which include,
but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Farmington Responds-Circle of Hope Initiative.
2.8.2. Faith based organizations.
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2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

2.8.3. Police Department.
2.8.4. Sheriff's Department.
2.8.5. Emergency responders.

The Contractor shall evaluate existing school policies on alcohol and other
drugs within the first year of the contract and recommend improvements to
the existing policies based on best practice and according to
recommendations made by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse, Prevention, Intervention and Treatment

The Contractor shall implement improvements to the alcohol and other drug
school policies in Section 2.6 in year two (2) of the contract.

The Contractor shall participate in the Student Assistance Leaming
Collaborative and other mandatory trainings as identified by the Department.

The Contractor shall allow a team authorized by the Department to meet with
staff on a quarterly basis or as needed to conduct a site visit. The Contractor
shall:

2.12.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of
contract compliance requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-
133.

2.12.2. Ensure the Department is provided with scheduled and unscheduled
access to Contractor staff and information that includes but is not
limited to:

2.12.2.1. Data
2.12.2.2. Financial records
2.12.2.3. Work sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

The Contractor shall collaborate with the Regional Public Health Network to
create a sustainability plan for continuation of the Student Assistance
Program beyond the contract end date, which shall be submitted to the
Department for approval no later than ninety (90) days prior to the contract
end date.

The Contractor shall work with the NH Center for Excellence, as needed, to
ensure evidence based interventions or core elements of evidence based
interventions (as approved by the Center for Excellence) are being
implemented with fidelity.
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3. Reporting

3.1.The Contractor shall input data on a monthly or quarterly basis in an online
database, as required by the Department, which shall include, but not be limited
to:

3.1.1.  Number of students who participated in SAP activities
3.1.2. Demographic of students who participated in SAP activities.

3.1.3. Number of environmental strategies implemented as a result of SAP
services

3.1.4. Amount of funds received from other sources for SAP activities
and/or programming.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional reports or data as required by the
Department.

4. Deliverables
4.1. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of five hundred (500)
students per year.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit the evidenced based screening tool described in
Section 2.1.1 to the Department no later than thirty (30) days from the
contract effective date.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13
to the Department for review and approval no later than ninety (80) days prior
to the contract completion date.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall maintain a 90% response rate of pre- and post-
assessments described in Section 2.3.

5.2. A minimum of 50% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will have an unfavorable attitude toward drugs and alcohol.

5.3. A minimum of 75% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will agree that participation in SAP activities had a positive impact
on how to effectively deal with peer pressure.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalogue for
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.243, United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Partnership for
Success Grant.

2. State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be at an all-
inclusive rate of $48.00 per hour for a maximum value of $100,000 per state fiscal year.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

41. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for payment no later than the twentieth (20™)
working day of each month for the number of hours worked in the previous month.

4.2. Invoices shall include the date, the hours worked, who provided the work and a brief
description of the work completed in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
well as documentation of matching funds as described in Section 7, below.

4.3. Invoices shall be sent to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: Financial Manager

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date identified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7 Completion
Date.

7. The Contractor shall provide documentation of matching funds in the amount of twenty-five
percent (25%) of the total price limitation indicated in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.8, Price Limitation. Matching funds may include:

7.1. A cash match is non-federal cash from the Contractor's own funds or cash donations
from non-federal third parties.

7.2.  An In-kind non-federal match is a non-monetary contribution of personnel, goods, or
services purchased or received from non-federal sources,

8. Schools above the state average of students receiving free or reduced lunch may include up
to 10% of the total 25% cash match as in-kind contributions.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2.  Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foliowing
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates,
or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In
no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated
or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until
such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be
required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the Account(s)
identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account,
in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the
State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet
those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered
by another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall
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Exhibit C-1

provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, uniess the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor |nit§a|s%§% !Z

Workplace Requirements
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date -a'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropniate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
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Workplace Requirements 7
CU/MDHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date |



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*“Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

e Al
SAlLG

Title: W‘m
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date ' Nam mg"éﬂvw

Title:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

i %ﬂw\\/m

Date ! Nan’ne
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Vs %&z \augh
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1 Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Agaregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “heaith care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act” means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Healith and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heaith and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer inmediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected heaith information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receivini Pgl ,
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Q. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

312014 Exhibit | Contractor lnitia@
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4)  Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. ‘

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rulg.gﬁ( i ]

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services 6 ﬁ M/ é /
The State Name of the Contractor

Yo% <

Signature of Authorized Representative

e N N e Rith Ellea Vavatn

Signature of Authorized Hepresentative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Repregentative
O./pc Ftr— Cf M//Mf///ﬂ/&/'
Title of Authorized Representative Title bf Authorized Representative
<= )17 Rugqus? [ )7
Date ' Date /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPINOORLN S

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provislons
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

R

Date °

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance Q/
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: 820(4\ g@@?

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor initials i ia

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date 322 42 %



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, ‘__\M_Ck%nm , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elegted Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of ' ) SC
ency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on Z&H 22 ) '&}lﬂ—_— :
(Da e)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the l day of ,20

(Date Contrac lgned

is the duly elected
(Name of Contrgdt Signatory) Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency. %

fﬁjﬁéturé of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Sﬁ &,E£Q£ l}
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this | day of ( Z(gﬂﬂ , 20 Z Z ,

By

-

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

iy,
A,

(MOTARY SEAL

ity
..'

&
So
23

gf

1

S
% |

Commission Expires:

LT——

2
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NH Public Risk Management Exchange c E RTIFICATE OF COVE RAG E

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex’) is organized under the New Hampshire Revrsed Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex’ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non- member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex’, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party’s per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The iimit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage’s C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator’s Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standlng of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex’. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage:
Farmington School District 958 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex®
60 Charles Street Bow Brook Place
Farmington, NH 03835 46 Donovan Street
— Concord, NH 03301-2624
e Eﬂeﬁveoste B iraﬁonDate
. . Type of Coverage L v | Ry Limits - NH Statutory Limits May Apply, I
X ger}eral Llal::IIthyé?i;lzgence I;o;m) 7/1/2016 7/1/2017 Each Olc:urrence : ggggggg
rofessional Liabili escribe eneral Aggregate ,000,
D Claims D Occurrence 7112017 7172018 Fire Damage (Any one

Made fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability

Deductible = Comp and Coll: Combined Single Limit
{Each Accident)
Any auto Aggregate
X | Workers’ Compensation & Employers’ Liability 7/1/2016 71112017 X Statutory $2,000,000
7/1/2017 7/1/2018 Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee

Disease — Poiicy Limit

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit, Replacement

Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: ] I Additional Covered Party ] [ Loss Payee Primex’ — NH Public Risk Management Exchange
By: Tammy Denver
State of NH DHHS Date:  5/22/2017 _ tdenver@nhprimex.org
129 Pleasant St Please direct inquires to:
Concord, NH 03301 Primex’ Claims/Coverage Services
603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax




Farmington School District SAU 61
School Board Members

Mr. Joel Chagnon, Chair
Ms. Angie Cardinal

Mr. Stan Freeda

Ms. Linda McElhinney
Mrs. Penny Morin

Mr. Brian Zawacki, Student Representative



LINDA D. SHEFF

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Professional School Counselor, Farmington High School, 40 Thayer Drive, Farmington,
Wakefield School District, NH, 2013 - Present
¢ Promote academic, personal, and social success and well-being of all students
Provide individual, group, and crisis counseling
Provide classroom and school-wide activities
Coordinate Section 504 Plans for students
Coordinate state and standardized testing (PSAT, SAT, and AP Exams)
Served on various school committees and teams
Develop the program of studies and the school schedule
Advise and register students for their high school classes
Collaborate with outside agencies, such as the police department and DCYF, etc.
Coordinate the college fair, college visits, and the work-study program
Promote career exploration and development

L 2EE JER JEE JER JEE K JEE JER R 2

Coordinator / Counselor / Diagnostic Prescriptive Teacher (DPT) for the Sequential

Transition Education Program (STEP 1 Program), Governor Wentworth Regional

School District, Ossipee Central School, 68 Main Street, Center Ossipee, NH, 2011-2013.
¢ Coordinated the STEP Program for students who are identified as severely

emotionally disturbed

Program liaison—between administrators, teachers, and program paraprofessionals

Developed individual education plans and comply with special education laws

Facilitated special education meetings

Consulted with teachers about student’s social / emotional needs and to develop

appropriate goals, curriculum modifications, and strategies

Maintained consistent contact with parents

Administered annual achievement assessments

Interpreted psycho-educational evaluations for parents and teachers

Provided individual and group counseling to students

Provided mediations and crisis interventions to students

Conducted functional behavioral assessments (FBAs) and behavior intervention

plans (BIPs)

¢ Served as the program representative for behavioral consultation throughout the
district

* & & o

* & & & o o

School Guidance Counselor, Wakefield School District, Paul School, 60 Taylor Way,
Sanbornville, NH, 2001 - 2011.
¢ Promoted academic, personal, and social success and well-being of all students
¢ Provided individual, group, and crisis counseling
¢ Taught developmental classroom guidance lessons



* o

* & & & o O

¢

Coordinated Section 504 Plan for students

Coordinated state and standardized testing (NECAP, NWEA, and NAEP)
Served on various school committees and teams, i.e. PBIS Committee, Special
Education Committee, Leadership Team, Crisis Committee, etc.

Designed the school’s annual Integrated Arts schedule

Co-designed and developed the Student Support Center

Collaborated with outside agencies, such as the police department and DCYF, etc.
Registered/assigned new student placement / high school registration
Developed, implemented, and coordinated the new teacher mentoring program
Participated in writing and developing a school improvement plan, as well as a
school-wide behavior system

Coordinated Career Week, Career Day, Job Shadowing Day, and Step-Up Day

Masters - Marriage & Family Therapist, The Family Center, Athens, TN, 1999 -2001.

¢

¢

Developed and implemented contracts with area schools to provide counseling for
special education students with behavioral problems (Pre-K through 12th grade)
Provided individual, couple, family, and group therapy — School-based as well as
private practice

Co-facilitated a therapeutic support group for victims of domestic violence

School-Based Youth Services Officer, McMinn Co. Department of Juvenile Services,
Athens, TN, 1993 - 1999.

¢

* & & o

*

¢

Provided school-based counseling for “At-Risk” students who were referred by
principals and teachers, as well as those in the alternative education program
Provided alcohol and drug counseling as well as drug testing

Supervised school probation caseload

Collaborated / consulted with school administrators and teachers

Provided and taught law related educatien classes, parenting classes, anger
management groups, positive choice groups, ropes courses, etc.

Attended multidisciplinary and IEP meetings

Provided on-call services to assist families and police with crisis interventions

EDUCATION

¢

¢

M.S. School Counseling, Southern Adventist University, Collegedale, TN, 2001,
GPA 4.0, Distinguished Dean’s List all semesters.

M.S. Marriage & Family Therapy, Southern Adventist University, Collegedale,
TN, 1999, GPA 4.0, Distinguished Dean’s List all semesters, Outstanding Student
Award.

B.A. Psychology, Tennessee Wesleyan College, Athens, TN, 1993, GPA 3.79,
Magna Cum Laude, Dean’s List all semesters.

A.A. Liberal Arts, Young Harris College, Young Harris, GA, 1991, Graduated
Phi Thetta Kappa, Dean’s List all quarters, Outstanding Sophomore Award.



RECENT PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

* & o o

CPI - Non-violent Crisis Intervention Training

Wired Differently: 5 Keys to Working With Students with Emotional and
Behavioral Challenges _

Ross Greene — Collaborative Problem Solving Approach

Functional Behavioral Assessments for Anxious and Depressed Students
Case Management Academy

Data Based Decisions

The Keys to Compliance: Implementing Section 504 as Amended by the
ADAAAOS

ADD / ADHD Workshop: “Smart but Scattered: Executive Dysfunction at Home
and at School”

Teacher Leadership Institute — Connecting policy to practice for improving
student achievement

Organizational Leadership in Schools

LSCI (Life Space Crisis Interventions)

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS)

CPR

RESEARCH

¢

Sheff, L. & Wilson, D., (2009, November). Attendance Matters: An Action
Research Project.

Lord, M. & Sheff, L., (2009, July). School Improvement: Implementing Response
to Intervention (RTI) at the Middle School Level.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATES

¢
¢

American School Counselors Association - Membership 2001 - present.
New Hampshire School Counselors Association - Membership 2001 - present.

COMMUNITY SERVICE

¢
¢
¢

Huggins Hospital - Street Fair Volunteer 2002 - present.
Red Cross Blood Drive - Donor and volunteer 2002 - present.
Secret Santa Program — Participated / volunteered — 2001 — present.



Diana B. De Nitto

Work Experience

Farmington School District SAU #61, Farmington, NH

June 2013 to present

Director of Student Services

In collaboration with principals, coordinator, school board, and school staff, responsible for planning and administration of the
special education services in SAU #61. Maintains a system of special education services, capably staffed to provide quality
educational and supportive offerings. Responsible for the recruitment and supervision of special education staff, related services
personnel, and programs. Determines professional development needs and arranges those offerings. Organizes community
presentations regarding issues such as the drug crisis, ADHD, and anxiety. Develops and implements procedures to achieve
these objectives within the financial allotments of local, state and federal sources. Prepares IDEA grant and special education
budget. Represents SAU 61 at court proceedings and beginning in 2016 assumed role of truancy officer including the filing of
CHINS petitions.

Farmington High School SAU #61, Farmington, NH

November 2013 to June 2013

Special Education Coordinator

Coordinated and supervised the special education programs within the school, attended referral, evaluation and IEP meetings as
the LEA representative or reassigned LEA role to other qualified staff. Oversaw IEP development, authorized final IEPs, and
monitored student. Ensured that all procedures and related timelines were met regarding IEP development, evaluations, and
determination of eligibility. Assisted school administration with placement of special education students in regular education.
Organized, designed, and delivered in-service training for regular education teachers, special education teachers and support
staff regarding special education services, IEP implementation, and other related issues. Attended court proceedings as district
representative for special education students. Participated as a member of the Pupil Assistance Team. Coordinated recruitment,
screening, hiring, training, and assignment of special education personnel. Supervised and evaluated special education staff in
collaboration with the building principal. Provided case management for a portion of the out of district students. Ensured
compliance as it related to the Medicaid to Schools Program.

Henry Wilson Memorial School SAU #61, Farmington, NH

August 2010-November 2013

Special Education Teacher / Case Manager

Taught grades four through six in a resource room setting and managed a case load of up to 25 students. Disabilities
of the population range from OHI for anxiety and ADHD to students who are severely impacted by Autism. Modify
regular classroom assignments to allow for greater independence for students with special needs. Collaborate with
area community organizations to fulfill family needs. Collaborate with educational consultants to meet the needs of
students on the Autism spectrum. Coordinate efforts to continue to develop a life skills program.

Prospect Mountain High School SAU #301, Alton, NH

August 2007-June 2010

English teacher grades 9, 10, 11 and summer school

Instructed classes of juniors at the general, college preparatory, honors levels and sophomores and freshmen at the general level.
In order to update our courses’ literature, previewed novels, filled out purchase orders and created activities and curriculum to
support the new works. Incorporated technology into my classes using PowerPoint and Windows MovieMaker. Co-wrote and
secured a Title II D Technology Integration Grant from the state of New Hampshire. The grant award aided the school in
purchasing 25 new Acer notebooks. Summer School Coordinator: recruited students, developed budget, hired summer school
staff, interfaced with parents, school administration and support services, taught English. Extra assignments: freshmen class co-
advisor, co-editor of the school’s NEASC narrative report, co-writer of the school-wide writing rubric.



Kennett High School SAU #9 Conway, NH

September 2006-June 2007

English teacher grade 9

Instructed heterogeneously grouped ninth grade English students. In addition, had one honors group of ninth graders. All of
these classes were prepared in collaboration with other ninth grade English teachers in a professional learning community
(PLC). We collectively planned and individually taught the following units: personal narrative, To Kill a Mockingbird,
literature based essay, and a multi-genre unit.

Lake Placid Middle / High School Lake Placid, NY

September 2004-June 2005

English teacher grade 11 & AP Literature and Composition

Prepared juniors to take and pass the New York State English Regents. Composed primarily of American literature, juniors
were taught to read various genres of literature with an eye toward extracting common themes. For a research assignment,
English 11 students conducted primary research to compose a biography about a relative. AP students read American and world
literature in preparation for the AP Literature exam in May. With the aim of discovering a work’s meaning students were
required to read and write critically. Attended two AP workshops at Vermont’s St. Johnsbury Academy, one in the summer of
2004 for the literature program and the other in the summer of 2005 for the language program. Wrote the curriculum for the AP
Language class in preparation for the class’s introduction to the 2004-2005 schedule.

Plattsburgh High School Plattsburgh, NY

September 2000-June 2004

English teacher grades 9, 10 & alternative education

In addition to the curriculum outlined below for Chazy Central, in Plattsburgh also instructed at-risk students (alternative
education). The alternative education students were juniors, in a self-contained setting, preparing to take the New York State
Regents exam in English.

Chazy Central School Chazy, NY

September 1993-June 2000

English teacher grades 10 & 12

Taught heterogeneous groups of students taking New York State Regents level courses. Students were instructed how to
analyze and discuss a work of literature in relation to literature terms. Analytical literature based essays, research papers, and
creative genres of writing were stressed. Basic grammar, spelling and vocabulary were also incorporated into the class.
Students were instructed on how to work effectively as individuals and in group settings.

Mountain Lake Public Broadcasting Plattsburgh, NY

September 1989-February 1993

Programming Assistant

Was responsible for the acquisition and booking of programs for on-air presentation. Shot and edited small segments of
promotional videos for on-air use, and ran a studio camera for in-house, local productions. Worked as a reporter for short news
clips, directed an in-studio dramatic piece, recorded voice-overs for local productions, and worked as on-camera talent for fund-
raising drives.

Education

University of New Hampshire at Durham

Special Education Administration Certificate Program
August 2013

Special Education Certification Program
August 2011

State University of New York at Plattsburgh
Master of Science in Teaching
August 1993

Syracuse University Syracuse, NY
S.I. Newhouse School of Public Communications
Bachelor of Science Television Production
May 1989



Sarah Holman Gould

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
M.Ed Counseling, May, 2012

Honors: GPA 3.9

Bridgewater State College, Bridgewater, MA
B.S. Psychology, May, 2003

Minor: Management
Honors: Dean's List, GPA 3.1

CERTIFICATIONS
K-12 Guidance Counselor certification

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Jennie D. Blake School, Hill, NH, 2014-present
School Counselor

- Counsel students in a variety of settings

« Lead the 504 process for all applicable students from referral to implementation and ensuring compliance

+  Serve as a member of the IEP team for all students referred for Special Education Services

- Actas a consultant to classroom teachers

- Develop and direct counseling groups on various topics

- Communicate regularly with parents and staff regarding needs of students on caseload

- Design and implement classroom Guidance curriculum for all classrooms weekly
Collaborated with local Community Mental Health Agency to establish a school based therapy program
Coordinated and executed Career Day for all classrooms

Strafford School, Strafford, NH, March - June, 2016
Interim School Counselor
- Integrated seamlessly into the school in the middle of the year
Counseled students in a variety of settings; including Special Education students with behavioral goals
Quickly built relationships with Special Education grade level teams and related service providers in order to
provide responsive and preventative services to all students
Designed and implemented a comprehensive bullying curriculum in fifth and sixth grade classrooms as a
result of an informal social needs assessment
- Communicated regularly with families

Nottingham School, Nottingham, NH, 2011-2012
Counseling Intern

Independently designed and implemented classroom guidance curriculum for Kindergarten classrooms

«  Facilitated Child Study Team meetings for individual students referred by classroom teachers

+  Collaborated with fourth grade teaching team and supervisor to create a grade-wide behavior plan utilizing the
Response to Intervention Model

- Developed and directed counseling groups on various topics including attention and anxiety
Counseled individuals and groups of students addressing goals specified on their Individual Education Plans

Belknap-Merrimack Head Start, 2010-2014
Family and Community Services Manager (promoted)

» Supervised a team of five Home Visitors: Conducted monthly individual supervisions, facilitated monthly
staff meetings, conducted annual evaluations of staff members and developed and tracked professional
development goals for all staff

» Built and maintained relationships with local agencies in order to provide seamless service to children and
families

» Implemented agency recruitment plan to ensure full enrollment and adequate waitlists at each site



Coordinated and conducted quarterly staffing with local Early Intervention program

Conducted Child Abuse and Neglect Training for all new staff

Regularly monitored Family Service, Education and Disabilities data in ChildPlus for Home Based Program
to ensure compliance with program regulations and Head Start Performance Standards

Coached staff in order to build their capacity to elicit meaningful change in the families served

Home Visitor

Supported low income families as they moved toward fulfillment of their parenting goals through weekly
home visits

Worked cooperatively with the local school district to guide families through the IEP process

Educated families on the Positive Behavior Intervention Systems behavior program, so they are able to
support their child’s behavior at home

Facilitated weekly Socializations with parents and children

Familiarized families with available community and agency resources

Served on the Self Assessment Team in the areas of Education and Disabilities

Strafford County Head Start, 2007-2010

Infant Teacher

Worked collaboratively with co-teacher to contribute to the overall growth of infants

Communicated with families on a regular basis informally at pick up and formally through established written
procedures

Screened children in all areas of development according to Head Start policy

Provided multiple sensory activities for children daily

School Age Teacher

Developed and implemented developmentally appropriate activities for children ranging from 5-12 years
Created an atmosphere that balanced individual choice with structure

Ensured that children’s social and emotional needs were met

Communicated with parents on a regular basis including informally at pick up and through a monthly
newsletter



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Farmington School District SAU #61

Name of Contract: RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-01 Student Assistance Program

“BUDGET PERIOD:

NAME

NAME JOB TITLE . | SAUARY ACT
Diana De Nitto Director of Student Services $80,800 $0.
Sarah Gould Guidance Counselor Grs 7 & 8 $39,044 0.00% ,,,$0.00
Linda Sheff Guidance Counselor Grs 9-12 $56,983 0.00%} ....... - $0.00
LADAC Consuitant Student Assistance Counselor $ 88,500.00 100.00%| ~  $88,500.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) - $88,500.00
~  BUDGET PERIOD: =

= i “AMOUNT PAID

- FROM THIS

_NAME . JOBTITLE o . SAL Y

Diana De Nitto Director of Student Services $82,907 0.00% __ $0.00]
Sarah Gould Guidance Counselor Grs 7 & 8 $40,345 0.00% . -$0.00
Linda Sheff Guidance Counselor Grs 9-12 $57,757 0.00% . -$0.00
LADAC Consultant Student Assistance Counselor $94,015.00 100.00% _$94,015.00

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Iltem 1 of Budget request) -$94,015.00




Subject: i -3018-BDAS-02- E-02

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shail become public upon submission to Gavernor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clesrly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. _IDENTIFICATION,

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
School Administrative Unit #18 Franklin School District

1.4 Contractor Address
119 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03218

1.5 Contracior Phone
Number
603-934-3108

1.6 Account Number
3395
05-95.49.491510-2407-102-

1.7 Completion Datc

June 30, 2019

1.8 Price Limitation

§ 200,000

500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.12 Name and Tiile of Contractor Signatory

Doate) | Le Gallg , 5oper,nk'/)c0<r\T

, County of Y et d('

On \)\‘{ 11 “0\7 hefore the undersxgned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1,12, or satisfactorily
proven to e the chm whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s'he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Pence

[Sesl] { <‘§"'\M’

1.11 Contractor Signature

113 Acknowledgement: Statcof ()i

ROBYN KEANE
NOTARY PusLic
State of Naw Hlmpshlre

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice o thc Pence

kan A“'\*em\e (-\

1.14 State Ageucy Stgna

March 22, 2022

(
1.18 #ame and Title of State Agency Signatory

2 b1 (ommison

By: Director, On:

117 Approval by the Attorney Genersl (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

> I | Ry - 34l

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page | of 4




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Student Assistant Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-02)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

School Administrative Unit #18 Franklin School District 119 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03235

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-934-3108 05-95-49-491510-2407-102- June 30, 2019 $ 200,000
500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory T
1.13 Ack ledgement: State of , County of _~ .
nowledge O ounty N )9_\4(\“\&%

On 3\)\‘{ (’)"\ \\0\7, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to pe the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block i.12.

| 1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ROBYN KEANE
- , NOTARY PusLIC
[Seal] ' &ﬁ\ A\ W, State of New Hampshire
1.12.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justicggthe Peace March 22, 2022
%u Keane. (\ o Cd
1.14 State Agency Slgna re~ 6 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

%Date g/f// F Zﬁf/ :%élﬂf’f/e , %ﬂll%lj [D/)?lﬂ&/ﬂ”c(

1.16 Approtal by thé N.H. Department of Administfatidn, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o I By o F4)h

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials %/)’
Date H Mah }



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”}:

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauit
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor Initials M
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services
1.  Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.  The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall increase the State’s existing prevention system
including, but not limited to, its resources and capacities to reduce substance
abuse and misuse in communities with high need and/or high risk populations
of:

1.3.1.  Underage drinking among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty (20),
and high risk for persons aged twenty-one (21) to twenty-five (25);

1.3.2. Prescription drug misuse and abuse, and illicit opioid misuse and
abuse among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty-five (25).

1.4. The Contractor shall hire one full-time student assistance program (SAP)
counselor who shall:

1.4.1. Work 37.5 hours per week throughout the school year.

1.4.2. Be available no less than 190 days for each school year.
1.5. The Contractor shall provide services to students in:

1.5.1.  Franklin High School

1.5.2. Franklin Middle School

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall screen individuals referred to the program, using the
guidance provided by the Department and an evidenced based screening tool
as recommended by NAMI-NH that includes an assessment of the individual,
family, substance use issues, and whether a referral to treatment is
appropriate. The Contractor shall:

21.1. Utilize the Center for Adolescent Substance Abuse Research
(CRAFFT); the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs - Short
Screener (GAIN-SS); or the Adolescent Substance Abuse Screening

Instrument (SASSI) screening tools, as appropriate. S/‘)

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.1.2. Refer individuals to community treatment providers, as appropriate.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct individual and group sessions, as appropriate,
which include but are not limited to:

2.21. Conducting individual support sessions, as needed, with the purpose
of crisis intervention or to motivate students in participating in groups
modeled after Project Success.

2.2.2. Conducting individual sessions as needed to assist students with:

2.2.2.1. Identifying and resisting social and situational pressures to
use substances.

2.2.2.2. Correcting misperceptions about the prevalence and
acceptability of substance use.

2.2.2.3. Focusing on the personal consequences of substance
misuse and abuse.

2.2.2.4. Practicing resistance and coping skills.

2.2.2.5. |dentifying barriers to using the newly developed skills or
adopting healthy attitudes.

2.2.3. Conduct the Newcomers Group, the Children of Substance Misusing
Parents Group and a Seniors Group beginning in year one and
expanding new groups in additional years as funding will allow that
are modeled after Project Success, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.2.3.1. Alcohol and other Drug Assessment Education Group
2.2.3.2. Sibling Group

2.2.3.3. Non-Users Group

2.2.3.4. Parents, Peers, and Partying Group

2.2.3.5. Users Group

2.2.3.6. Users/Children of Substance Misusing Parents Group
2.2.3.7. Recovery Group.

2.3. The Contractor shall administer pre- and post-assessments that measure
student attitudes toward drugs and alcohol to determine and monitor the
effectiveness of the Student Assistance Program and measure the impact of
student groups which include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Children of Substance Misusing Parents/Caregivers Group;
2.3.2. Senior Group.

2.4. The Contractor shall administer annual surveys, and provide results ofze

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

surveys, during the period of March through May, which include but are not
limited to:

2.4.1. The Youth Risk Behavior Survey of all students in grades nine (9)
through twelve (12).

2.4.2. The Department provided survey for grades seven (7) through eight
(8).
2.5. The Contractor shail provide education sessions and/or materials, as

approved by the Department, to individuals and or groups, that may include,
but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Parent/caregiver education regarding prescription drug misuse,
underage drinking and binge drinking, within the school and
community.

2.5.2. Alcohol and other drug prevention education in middle school or high
school, using evidence based curriculum, such as Project Alert,
during seventh and ninth grade transitional years that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Adolescent alcohol, tobacco and other drug information.
2.5.2.2. Family Dynamics and pressures.
2.5.2.3. Skills for coping with stress and life pressure.

2.6. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school/community
centered environmental strategies that broadly reach populations within the
school and community and focus on alcohol and other drug prevention
messaging, including but not limited to:

2.6.1. Providing Youth Mental Health First Aid training to parents, family
members, caregivers, teachers, school staff, peers, neighbors, health
and human services workers, in order to provide information on how
to help adolescents who are experiencing a mental health or
addiction challenge or who may be in crisis.

2.6.2. Universal awareness/education activities, including but not limited to:
2.6.2.1. Participating in Red Ribbon Week activities.
2.6.2.2. Creating Positive Behavior Support Plan (PBIS).
2.6.2.3. Alcohol Awareness.
26.24. Great American Smoke-Out.

2.6.3. Brainstorming ideas with student volunteers, which may result in
improvements for the school and the community.

2.7. The Contractor shall increase school and community awareness of the

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials n }
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

Student Assistance Program services through media and marketing including
but not limited to print media and social media, which may include, but is not
limited to Facebook and Instagram in partnership with Department identified
organizations, including but not limited to the Partnership for a Drug Free NH.
The Contractor shall:

2.7.1. Participate in National Prescription Drug Take Back Day in April of
each contract year.

2.7.2. Participating in the Project Sticker Shock Campaign that promotes
awareness by providing stickers in public places that have warnings
about penalties for adults who may purchase alcohol legally and
provide it to minors.

2.7.3. Family Day, CASA, Eat Dinner with Your Children — September of
each contract year, a program with key goals that include:

2.7.3.1. Spend time with kids by having dinner together.

2.7.3.2. Talk to kids about friends, interests and dangers of
nicotine, alcohol and other drugs.

2.7.3.3. Answer kids’ questions and listen to what they have to say.

2.7.3.4. Recognize power that can assist kids to remain substance-
free.

2.8. The Contractor shall announce the intentions of the Student Assistance
Program in collaboration with community partners in their area which include,
but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Franklin mayor’s drug task force.
2.8.2. Winnipesaukee Regional Public Health Network.

2.9. The Contractor shall evaluate existing school policies on alcohol and other
drugs within the first year of the contract and recommend improvements to
the existing policies based on best practice and according to
recommendations made by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse, Prevention, Intervention and Treatment

2.10. The Contractor shall implement improvements to the alcohol and other drug
school policies in Section 2.6 in year two (2) of the contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall participate in the Student Assistance Learning
Coliaborative and other mandatory trainings as identified by the Department.

2.12. The Contractor shall allow a team authorized by the Department to meet with
staff on a quarterly basis or as needed to conduct a site visit. The Contractor
shalk:

2.12.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-02 Page 4 of 6 Date l { &Lg (/]



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

contract compliance requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-
133.

2.12.2. Ensure the Department is provided with scheduled and unscheduled
access to Contractor staff and information that includes but is not
limited to:

2.12.21. Data
2.12.2.2. Financial records
2.12.2.3. Work sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Regional Public Health Network to
create a sustainability plan for continuation of the Student Assistance
Program beyond the contract end date, which shall be submitted to the
Department for approval no later than ninety (90) days prior to the contract
end date.

2.14. The Contractor shall work with the NH Center for Excellence, as needed, to
ensure evidence based interventions or core elements of evidence based
interventions (as approved by the Center for Excellence) are being
implemented with fidelity.

3. Reporting

3.1.The Contractor shall input data on a monthly or quarterly basis in an online
database, as required by the Department, which shall include, but not be limited
to:

3.1.1.  Number of students who participated in SAP activities
3.1.2. Demographic of students who participated in SAP activities.

3.1.3.  Number of environmental strategies implemented as a result of SAP
services

3.1.4. Amount of funds received from other sources for SAP activities
and/or programming.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional reports or data as required by the
Department.

4. Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of seven hundred fifty
(750) students per year.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13
to the Department for review and approval no later than ninety (90) days prior
to the contract completion date.

5. Performance Measures

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials E) g ’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

51. The Contractor shall maintain a 90% response rate of pre- and post-
assessments described in Section 2.3.

5.2. A minimum of 50% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will have an unfavorable attitude toward drugs and alcohol.

5.3. A minimum of 75% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will agree that participation in SAP activities had a positive impact
on how to effectively deal with peer pressure.

Franklin School District, SAU#18 Exhibit A Contractor Initials M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalogue for
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.243, United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Partnership for
Success Grant.

2. State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be at an all-
inclusive rate of $48.00 per hour for a maximum value of $100,000 per state fiscal year.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

41.  The Contractor shall submit an invoice for payment no later than the twentieth (20™)
working day of each month for the number of hours worked in the previous month.

4.2. Invoices shall include the date, the hours worked, who provided the work and a brief
description of the work completed in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
well as documentation of matching funds as described in Section 7, below.

43. Invoices shall be sent to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: Financial Manager

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date identified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7 Completion
Date.

7. The Contractor shall provide documentation of matching funds in the amount of twenty-five
percent (25%) of the total price limitation indicated in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.8, Price Limitation. Matching funds may include:

71. A cash match is non-federal cash from the Contractor's own funds or cash donations
from non-federal third parties.

7.2.  An In-kind non-federal match is a non-monetary contribution of personnel, goods, or
services purchased or received from non-federal sources,

8. Schools above the state average of students receiving free or reduced lunch may include up
to 10% of the total 25% cash match as in-kind contributions.

Franklin School District, SAU #18 Exhibit B Contractor Initials%/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that alt applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2.  Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials b/a/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shail submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officiais requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and haajjf) or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor empioyee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant fanguage of the workforce
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Heaith and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, reguiations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compitation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates,
or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In
no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated
or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until
such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be
required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the Account(s)
identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account,
in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the
State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet
those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered
by another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit C-1

provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition,;

1.2.  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Vbl Oy Ol

Dat N : ,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Ve

Date Nfr::e: /\\L\ Le, (}o\\(\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

n o ”oa ”u

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

” o«

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters (/7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
el S/ )(/LMD

Date Name: Dm\{/\ [_(/éi,,l\\b

Title: SAUQ Suwm—a\bf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’'s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G w
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

1/2%/0 ~—2 koY,

Date Name: )y~ | e & \\o

Title: 5,&0 $% SL)F@_"AW
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’'s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

() A,

Date Name: Qu~el L G\lo

Title: 5‘\\)\5 5{)9(}_“”%\{/
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Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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(2)

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
[l. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businﬁ ;:,
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(3)

3/2014

Assoaciate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receivini PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PH! in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Di%
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5

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resoived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services 5 A O \g

The State ( Na(§i32ch\ejn’(ricft};)‘j‘(7

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

[k Shibrnete D Le/(w\\D

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
RIS SpY :/\l{/\&/\‘('
Title of Autherized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
g 1817 2/36/0)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OONOO A WN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

el M )J&QQ«

Date #Ii:talr;e: Vorel Lp Gullo
SV % 5upr‘v\"—0\;9~b\)f

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance ,7 d‘e 7
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperagifve agreements?

NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance é / ’7
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date 2 [2 [



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Tim Dow , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency cannot he contract signatory)

1.l am a duly elected Officer of _the Franklin School Board (Agency

Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 12015
{Date)
RESOLVED: That the Superintendent of Schools

(Title of Contract Signalory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _27th day of July L2017 .

{Date Cantract Signed)
4. Daniel LeGallo is the duly elected Superintendent

{Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency. \

LD 220)

(SiggatureYof the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Merrimack

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ 27th day of _July ,2017

By Tim Dow
{Name or Elected Cfficer of the Agency}

et the Peace)

ROBYN KEANE

- ate of New Hampshire

Commission Expires: AW My Commission Expires
March 22, 2022
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NH Public Risk Management Exchange CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex’) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex® is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex’, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex’ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage’s C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator’s Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage.
Franklin School District 716 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex’
SAU #18 Bow Brook Place
119 Central Street 46 Donovan Street
Franklin, NH 03235 Concord, NH 03301-2624
X General Liability (Occurrence Form) 71112017 7/1/2018 Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000
Professional Liability (describe) General Aggregate $ 5,000,000
Claims Fire Damage (Any one
D Made D Occurrence ﬁ:::; ge (Any
Med Exp (Any one person)
| X_| Automobile Liability 7112017 7112018 e
‘ Deductible  Comp and Coll: $1,000 Combined Single Limit $5,000,000
(Each Accident)
Any auto Aggregate $5,000,000
X | Workers’ Compensation & Employers’ Liability 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 X Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000
Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000
Disease — Policy Limit
X Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:
$1,000
Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER: I Additional Covered Party | I Loss Payee Primex® = NH Public Risk Management Exchange
By: Tammy Denver
New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services Date: _ 7/26/2017 _ tdenver@nhprimex.org
129 Pleasant St. Please direct inquires to:
Concord, NH 03301 Primex’ Claims/Coverage Services
' 603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax




Franklin School Board Members

Name

Job Title

Tim Dow

Chair of School Board

Deb Brown

Scott Burns

Susan Hallett-Cook

Jeff Savary

Anya Twarog

Robin Gargano

Paul Doucette

Lisa Tremblay




JENNIFER L. SUMNER

PERSONAL STATEMENT:

My goal is to utilize my 12+ years of experience working as a master's level clinician with varied
professional experiences to be a team member of a behavioral health clinical department at a New
Hampshire University that serves a diverse student population. Helping people obtain optimal
emotional, social, and behavioral wellness is what I am most passionate about and my exceptional
and trustworthy counseling skills provide a safe environment for people to improve their lives.

WORK EXPERIENCE:
2016-Present Plymouth State University, Social Work Teaching Lecturer Plymouth, NH

[ Teaching SW2200 Introduction to Social Work Course which includes presenting an overview of
the field, code of ethics, social welfare, poverty, human rights, diversity, child welfare, gerontology,
health care, mental health, crisis/trauma.

2015-Present Project AWARE Grant Program Manager SAU #18 Franklin, NH

0 Management of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) funded
budget and oversee program implementation for Project AWARE (Advancing Wellness and
Resilience in Education) for the Franklin School District, Preschool-12th Grade; 1,200 student
population.

0 Coordinate Community Management Team, Supervise School Social Workers and School-Family
Liaison, create Memorandum of Understandings (MOU) with community partners and stakeholders
and maintain the communication at all levels of the grant project.

0 Assist in Community level needs assessment, environmental scan, data collection, and
comprehensive plan for program implementation.

0 Ensure evidenced-based programming and curricula for increasing mental health access for
students and increasing culture and climate, including multi-tiered systems of support (MTSS}),
positive interventions, behaviors, and supports (PBIS).

0 Train adults who work with youth in the National Council's Youth Mental Health First Aid
(YMHFA).

2012-2015 Franklin School District School Social Worker/Crisis Counselor Franklin, NH

0 Provided supportive counseling, crisis counseling including suicide assessment, family
intervention, individual and group counseling.

0 Conducted resource and referral to Community Mental Health Center and other pertinent
community social services.

0 Coordinated reporting of abuse/neglect allegations to Division of Children, Youth, Families (DCYF).

0 Active member of PBIS (Positive Intervention Behavior and Supports) Yellow and Red Team at
Franklin High School which is a multi-tiered system of support for student needs which focuses on
social-emotional learning.

0 Served as the Homeless Liaison for SAU #18/Franklin School District, adhering to McKinney-Vento
laws.



2003-2012 Casey Family Services- Clinical Social Worker & Case Manager Franklin, NH

0 Managed intensive caseload of foster, adopted, and reunified youth ages 4-19 to sustain or
establish permanency of DCYF and/or DJJS involved families including home-visits and
supervised interactions.

0 Created individualized service plans, facilitate permanency team meetings for foster youth needing
legal permanence, testify in court review hearings regarding client progress.

0 Provided various evidenced-based, therapeutic interventions such as TFCBT {Trauma Focused
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy).

0 Facilitated various psycho-educational groups for students, parents, and kinship/relatives as

parents.
0 Provided supportive counseling, crisis intervention and stabilization, on-call rotation, and resource
and referral for families.

2003-2004 Casey Family Services Family Support Specialist & Site Director Franklin, NH
[ Designed before, after, and summer school program for K-4 students adhering to 212t Century
Community Learning Center Grant funding.

0 Established “community schools” concept within Franklin schools.
0 Supervised staff of 8-10 with a daily youth attendance of 50 children.

2002-2003 Riverbend Community Mental Health Clinical Case Manager Concord, NH
I Managed a caseload of 40 adults with severe and persistent mental illness (SPMI).
0 Taught activities of daily living (ADL's) and helped to increase independence.

0 Completed case documentation and assisted clients with maintaining their various benefits such
as SSDI and Medicaid.

2001-2002 Concord Feminist Health Center Concord, NH

0 Telephone screenings and scheduled appointments for women seeking various gynecological
services including first trimester abortions.

0 Counseled women before their abortions to explain the procedure and provided birth control
options.

0 Performed various duties during clinic days including scrubbing and sterilizing medical equipment
using an autoclave.

CERTIFICATIONS:

2010-Present NH Board of Mental Health Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW)
2016 Diversity and Cultural Competency Facilitator

2015-Present Youth Mental Health First Aid Certified Instructor (YMHFA)

2007-2013 American Red Cross First Aid/CPR/AED Certified Instructor

STATE AND NATIONAL PRESENTATIONS:
Sept. 2016 Diversity and Cultural Competence: Panel Presentation at the 21® Annual Conference
on Advancing School Mental Health, San Diego, California.
May 2016 Prevention in Schools-Creating a Community-based, multidisciplinary team: Panel
Presentation at the NH Governor’s Summit on Substance Misuse, Manchester, New
Hampshire.
May 2009 Produced and Presented Games, Tools, and Toys; Raising Culturally Competent
Children Workshop for New Hampshire Diversity Conference, Manchester, New
Hampshire.



EDUCATION:

2000-2004 University of New Hampshire Durham, NH
[ Master of Social Work (MSW), Clinical Concentration

0 Field Internship I: Child and Family Services Student Assistance Program (SAP) at Franklin Middle
School

[ Field Internship II: Casey Family Services Specialized Foster Care Program

1993-1998 Keene State College Keene, NH

0 Bachelor of Art (BA) in Psychology with Art Minor

§ Semester Abroad: University of Derby, Derby, England

AFFILIATIONS/AWARDS:

0 NASW (National Association of Social Workers)

0 NHSSWA (New Hampshire School Sacial Worker Association)

0 NH DBHRT (Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team)

0 Recipient of the Plymouth State University Social Work Field Instructor of the Year 2011



JENA VINCENT

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Franklin Middle School - SAU 18 8/2015-Current
200 Sanborn Street, Franklin, NH 03235

School Social Wotker: Collaborate with school administration, school guidance team, and teachers to provide enhanced
services to youth and their families. Co-facilitate and facilitate evidence based groups for youth. Collaborate with arez
resources to link youth and familtes to reduce barriers and enhance success for school, home, and the community.
Supervision of clinical interns.

John H. Sununu Youth Services Center 2/2012 - 8/27/2015
1056 North River Road, Manchester, NH 03104
Psychological Associate I: Provide clinical counseling fot juveniles involved in structured court-ordered programs. Entailed

psychological assessments, evaluation and delivery of individual counseling, family therapy, and substance abuse
programming. Development of treatment plans, including all family, school counseling and plans, Unit, and community
plans. Experienced in Trauma Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy. Supervision of clinical Interns.

Genesis Behaviotral Health 7/2010 — 10/30/2013

111 Church Street, Laconia, NH 03246 (LRGH Medical Office Building Site)

Clinical Therapist/Licensed Alcohol & Drug Counselor: Provide therapeutic counseling and short-term alcohol and drug
counseling. Experienced with intake assessments, evaluations, diagnosis and clinical counseling for clients that are self
referred as well as involved in court ordered programs and probation. Expetienced in various counseling models, including
trauma related, cognitive behavioral therapy, person centered therapy, and reality therapy. Supervision of clinical interns.

SAU # 2 - Inter-Lakes School District 6/2007-6/18/2011

Inter-Lakes High School, 1 Laker Lane, and 103 Main Street, Metedith, NH 03253

Teen Intervene Program Coordinator: Provide btief substance abuse counseling and progtam delivery with SAMHSA
evidence-based model for youth and reinforce program model for pateatal iavolvement. NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services grant funded program. Collaboration with Guidance Department for Freshman programming and school counseling
with identified high—risk youth.

Executive Director: Develop and ovetsee program implementation of federal, state, and local grant management, grant writing
and fiscal management. Successful grant writing for SAMHSA Drug Free Communities, State of NH Tobacco Prevention &
Control Program, and Bureau of Drug and Alcoho] Services. Responsible for countywide community substance abuse
prevention education programring, information dissemination, resource guide development and reporting. Develop and
implementation of prevention education and couaseling, youth leadership programming, positive peer and community
mvolvement, school programming, and parent/care-giver programs for the six area high schools and Belknap County
residents. Supervision of program staff and youth development program intems and clinical interns.

Child and Family Services 3/1999-7/2007
99 Hanover Street, Manchester, NH 03105

Integrated Home-Based Program — Family Therapist: 9/04-7/07: Lnplement solution focused court ordeted home based
counseling, addressed individual substance abuse treatment and therapy family needs, goal-orientated services, with
accountability to juvenile court system in Belknap County Drug Court. Collaboration with school systems and community
networks to reduce barriers to success,

Child Health Care Progtam Supervisor: 5/05-6/07: Managed intake referrals for court ordeted visitation ptogram, provided
trainings and supervision to staff and intemns.

Lakes Region Board of Directors Community Liaison: 12/04-6/07: Represent Child and Family Setvices Lakes Region
office and the agency to community organizations and professional partners.

Family Sponsor Program Coordinator: Developed and implemented in-home based services for families in need of assistance,
developed educational workshops, recruit, train, and supervised volunteers.
Therapeutic Parenting Group: Co-counsel therapeutic group, implement parenting techniques and information on substance
abuse, domestic violence, and community resources.
10, oordi er School Pro, s: Provide technical and program planning suppott to after school programs,
program grant writing, track grant information, assist sites with sustainability for program management.



Jobs for New Hampshire Graduates - NH Job Training Council Inc. 9/1998-9/2004
New Hampshire Community Technical College-Manchester, 100 Middle Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Out-of-School Youth Specialist Director: NH Community Technical College: Laconia: Implement the Jobs for New
Hampshite Graduates Drop-out Recovery model to youth ages 16-21. Provide non-traditional educational, career exploration,
and counseling services in the college atmosphere. Provide mentoting, linkages to area services, career exploration, and post-
secondary educational options. Prepare and assist students for GED exam and transition into post-secondary
education/training, military, apprenticeship, and employment, Supervise tutors, bookkeeping for students, and track students
via national database for JAG and Department of Education WIA Youth.

Youth Specialist; Manchester West High School: Guidance and counseling to identified Juniors and Seniors, exploration of
career opportunities and college exploration, in school and family assistance, alternative educational options, community
service and work based leaming activities. Assisted with school scheduling and college applications. Track students via
national database for JAG and Department of Education WIA Youth. Governor’s Summer Youth Program: Program
Supervisors for Gitl’s Inc. Nashua, and Alverine High School, Hudson, Program Supervisor. Provide technical and support
services, track and monitor program curdculum for state and federal standards.

Greater Laconia Community Services Counsel 3/1997-9/1998

635 Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246

Carcer Advisor: Assisted in the developing and implemeatation of the Career Visions Project with University of New
Hampshire, a federally funded project designed to assist students with academic and classroom instruction, community
service projects, career intemships, and continuing education. Provided educational counseling and school mentonng,

Additional employment expetience unrelated to Human Services field.

EDUCATION

Rivier University, Nashua, NH 5/2012
Certificate of Advanced Study-School Psychology Graduated with Distinction
Cambridge College, Cambridge, MA 6/2002
Masters in Education in Counseling Psychology Deans Scholarship
Springfield College, Manchester, NH and Springfield, MA 7/1998
Bachelors of Science in Human Services with a concentration in Criminal Justice

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH 5/1996
Associates in Science in Human Services Phi Theta Kappa

Extensive trainings related to counseling, prevention and substance abuse education sponsored by SAMHSA and
NAADAC and Department of Education

CERTIFICATIONS:

2/26/2016 USA Youth Mental Health First Aid Instructor: A training designed to tech members of the public how to
respond to emergency mental health situations and deliver mental health education

10/9/2012 Certified School Psychologist: New Hampshire Board of Education Certification that enables various testing after
an advanced education in School Psychology

2/1/2012 Certified UCLA PTSD Trauma Specialist: A specialized training and study specific to trauma and youth
2/15/2010 Licensed Alcohol & Drug Counselor: State of New Hampshite Board of Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug
Use Professionals - ICRC exam and certification

6/25/2009 Cettified Prevention Specialist: An ICRC exam requiring 2000 hours of Alcokol, Tobacco and Other Drug
(ATOD) prevention work expedence, 100 houts of prevention specific education with fifty hours ATOD specific education.
Required to receive NH State grants EXPIRED: Needs to be recertified

10/6/2008 Tobacco Treatment Specialist - UMASS Medical School: A training and treatment program specific to tobacco
education and core competencies for providing evidence-based treatment for nicotine dependence

10/18-21/2005 Global Appraisal of Individual Needs ~ GAIN: A structured full bio-psycho-social evaluation that integrates
research and clinical assessment to diagnosis individual treatment planning

7/20-21/2005 Adolescent Community Reinforcement Approach — ACRA: A treatment model that is specific to reinforcing
environmental contingencies for youth and their families regarding substance abuse and prevention tools and positive choices

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
NAADAC ~ Association for Addiction Professionals
New Hampshire Association of School Psychologists

REFERENCES WILL BE PROVIDED UPON REQUEST



KEY PERSONNEL SHEET

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

School Administrative Unit #18, Franklin School District

Name of Contract:

Student Assistance Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE)

Student Assistance Coordinator $55,000 .
$0 0.00%
30 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

__ BUDGET PERIOD: o

o o b 'FROM THIS

NAME __ |JOBTITLE : . CONTRACT

TBD Student Assistance Coordinator $55, OOO 100.00% $55 OOG 00
$0 0.00% __ _$0.00
$0 000%) $0.00
$0 0.00%|  ~$000
$0 0.00% _ $0.00
$0 o.00% . s‘$ooo

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request) $55 000 00




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Student Assistant Pr mm[EA-ZQlﬂ-BDAS—OZ-ﬁluQE 03)

( Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall bccomc pubhc upon submlsslon to Governor and

‘g Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

L be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

- AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
__1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Plensant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name ' 1.4 Contractor Address
School Administrative Unit #30 Laconia School District 39 Harvard Street
Laconia, NH 03264
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-524-5710 05-95-49-4915 10)»107 -1 } June 30, 2019 $ 199,990
. 500731 | y: |

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246
1.11 Contractor Signature r 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

3 T //%W—/ Beca Ad'« M J\V\;\'ﬂk, J’f‘r“’:“‘“dhﬂ'

113 AWgcmcnt: State of \Wawttw{En ¥z, County of Pl

On \\ujq ot 0T |, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the persen identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

N

pww REGINA THEBLRGE
( Notary Pubhc
1.13.2 NEORHM T he m\f H}"e!mn x.xguqa
; 1.10.2 Name itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace April 17, 2018
ng"\'&bcrﬂ ¢, Notard
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

anx?&}% Date: /3/‘—’ \<~\:-\h—sg’<xbs/lchr-

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance end Execution) (if applicable)

v \ Yy , ey o« (37l
[ ALy VARALS
1.18 Approval by the Govemor andExccutive Council (¥f applicable)
By: On:

Page 1 of 4




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Student Assistant Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-(3)
Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
School Administrative Unit #30 Laconia School District 39 Harvard Street

Laconia, NH 03264
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number
603-524-5710 05-95-49-491510-2407-102- June 30, 2019 $ 199,990
500731 ;

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

7 .
;?\(/ A% Becad an P’\&J\v\l\m«'_iffbcrep\ch)cf}

1.13 Acknawledgement: State of \Newthpnive, County of  Pellcnec?

On -\\d‘l‘{ St A0IF , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

REGINA THEBERGE
[Seal] @)6‘7;\/\,& % Notary Public
132 Na Titl ( i My Commissiomr Expires:
) 1 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace April 17, 2018
?M\M\;’V&b@rq< RN
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

)(:";?% )’; Date: §/2/| I \<t‘\-:\ ~S ;K L D//c R

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o oy vy o (3017

1.18 Approval by the Governor and 'Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4




2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actualty
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials (\'\/
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished. :

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described m the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1.  Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.  The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2.  The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall increase the State’s existing prevention system

' including, but not limited to, its resources and capacities to reduce substance
abuse and misuse in communities with high need and/or high risk populations
of:

1.3.1. Underage drinking among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty (20),
and high risk for persons aged twenty-one (21) to twenty-five (25);

1.3.2. Prescription drug misuse and abuse, and illicit opioid misuse and
abuse among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty-five (25).

1.4. The Contractor shall hire three (3) student assistance program (SAP)
counselors, of which:

1.4.1. Two (2) shall work .375 hours per week (0.10 FTE) twelve months of
year.

1.4.2. One (1) shall work 37.5 hours per week (1.0 FTE) for 200 days of the
year (full school year and fourteen (14) summer days).

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to students in:
1.5.1. Laconia Middle School.
1.5.2. Laconia High School.

2. Scope of Work

2.1.  The Contractor shall screen individuals referred to the program, using the
guidance provided by the Department and an evidenced based screening tool
as recommended by NAMI-NH that includes an assessment of the individual,
family, substance use issues, and whether a referral to treatment is
appropriate. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Submit the evidenced based screening tool to be used to the
Department for approval within thirty (30) days of the contract
effective date.

Laconia School District, SAU#30 Exhibit A Contractor Initials B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.1.2. Refer individuals to community treatment providers, as appropriate.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct individual and group sessions, as appropriate,
which include but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Conducting individual support sessions, as needed, with the purpose
of crisis intervention or to motivate students in participating in groups
modeled after Project Success.

2.2.2. Conducting individual sessions as needed to assist students with:

2.2.2.1. ldentifying and resisting social and situational pressures to
use substances.

2.2.2.2. Correcting misperceptions about the prevalence and
acceptability of substance use.

2.2.2.3. Focusing on the personal consequences of substance
misuse and abuse.

2.2.2.4. Practicing resistance and coping skills.

2.2.2.5. I|dentifying barriers to using the newly developed skills or
adopting healthy attitudes.

2.2.3. Conduct the Newcomers Group, the Children of Substance Misusing
Parents Group and a Seniors Group beginning in year one and
expanding new groups in additional years as funding will allow that
are modeled after Project Success, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.2.3.1. Alcohol and other Drug Assessment Education Group
2.2.3.2. Sibling Group

2.2.3.3. Non-Users Group

2.2.3.4. Parents, Peers, and Partying Group

2.2.3.5. Users Group

2.2.3.6. Users/Children of Substance Misusing Parents Group
2.2.3.7. Recovery Group.

2.3. The Contractor shall administer pre- and post-assessments that measure
student attitudes toward drugs and alcohol to determine and monitor the
effectiveness of the Student Assistance Program and measure the impact of
student groups which include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Children of Substance Misusing Parents/Caregivers Group;
2.3.2. Senior Group.
2.4. The Contractor shall administer annual surveys, and provide results of the

Laconia School District, SAU#30 Exhibit A Contractor Initials_ 8™
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

Laconia School District, SAU#30 Exhibit A Contractor Initials

surveys, during the period of March through May, which include but are not
limited to:

2.4.1. The Youth Risk Behavior Survey of all students in grades nine (9)
through twelve (12).

2.4.2. The Department provided survey for grades seven (7) through eight
(8).
The Contractor shall provide education sessions and/or materials, as

approved by the Department, to individuals and or groups, that may include,
but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Parent/caregiver education regarding prescription drug misuse,
underage drinking and binge drinking, within the school and
community.

2.5.2. Alcohol and other drug prevention education in middle school or high
school, using evidence based curriculum, such as Project Alert,
during seventh and ninth grade transitional years that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Adolescent alcohol, tobacco and other drug information.
2.5.2.2. Family Dynamics and pressures.
2.5.2.3. Skills for coping with stress and life pressure.

The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school/community
centered environmental strategies that broadly reach populations within the
school and community and focus on alcohol and other drug prevention
messaging, including but not limited to:

2.6.1. Initiating health and wellness activities within the school buildings.
2.6.2. Participating in Red Ribbon Week activities.

2.6.3. Brainstorming ideas with student volunteers, which may result in
improvements for the school and the community.

The Contractor shall increase school and community awareness of the
Student Assistance Program services through media and marketing including
but not limited to print media and social media, which may include, but is not
limited to Facebook, Twitter and Instagram in partnership with Department
identified organizations, including but not limited to the Partnership for a Drug
Free NH.

The Contractor shall announce the intentions of the Student Assistance
Program in collaboration with community partners that may include, but are
not limited to:

2.8.1. Faith based organizations.
g/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.8.2. Police Department.
2.8.3. Sheriff's Department.
2.8.4. Emergency responders.

2.9. The Contractor shall evaluate existing school policies on alcohol and other
drugs within the first year of the contract and recommend improvements to
the existing policies based on best practice and according to
recommendations made by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse, Prevention, Intervention and Treatment

2.10. The Contractor shall implement improvements to the alcohol and other drug
school policies in Section 2.6 in year two (2) of the contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall participate in the Student Assistance Learning
Collaborative and other mandatory trainings as identified by the Department.

2.12. The Contractor shall allow a team authorized by the Department to meet with
staff on a quarterly basis or as needed to conduct a site visit. The Contractor
shall:

2.12.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of
contract compliance requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-
133.

2.12.2. Ensure the Department is provided with scheduled and unscheduled
access to Contractor staff and information that includes but is not
limited to:

2.12.2.1. Data
2.12.2.2. Financial records
2.12.2.3. Work sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Regional Public Health Network to
create a sustainability plan for continuation of the Student Assistance
Program beyond the contract end date, which shall be submitted to the
Department for approval no later than ninety (90) days prior to the contract
end date.

2.14. The Contractor shali work with the NH Center for Excellence, as needed, to
ensure evidence based interventions or core elements of evidence based
interventions (as approved by the Center for Excellence) are being
implemented with fidelity.

Laconia School District, SAU#30 Exhibit A Contractor Initials zw
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

3. Reporting
3.1.  The Contractor shall input data on a monthly or quarterly basis in an online
database, as required by the Department, which shall include, but not be
limited to:

3.1.1.  Number of students who participated in SAP activities
3.1.2.  Demographic of students who participated in SAP activities.

3.1.3.  Number of environmental strategies implemented as a result of SAP
services

3.1.4. Amount of funds received from other sources for SAP activities
and/or programming.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional reports or data as required by the
Department.
4. Deliverables
4.1. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of nine hundred sixty-
three (963) students per year.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit the evidenced based screening tool described in
Section 2.1.1 to the Department no later than thirty (30) days from the
contract effective date.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13
to the Department for review and approval no later than ninety (90) days prior
to the contract completion date.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall maintain a 90% response rate of pre- and post-
assessments described in Section 2.3.

5.2. A minimum of 50% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will have an unfavorable attitude toward drugs and alcohol.

5.3. A minimum of 75% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will agree that participation in SAP activities had a positive impact
on how to effectively deal with peer pressure.

Laconia School District, SAU#30 Exhibit A Contractor Initials &Y™
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)
Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalogue for
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.243, United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Partnership for
Success Grant.

2. State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be at an all-
inclusive rate of $48.00 per hour for a maximum value of $99,995 per state fiscal year.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

41. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for payment no later than the twentieth (20™)
working day of each month for the number of hours worked in the previous month.

42. Invoices shall include the date, the hours worked, who provided the work and a brief
description of the work completed in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
well as documentation of matching funds as described in Section 7, below.

4.3. Invoices shall be sent to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: Financial Manager

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date identified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7 Completion
Date.

7. The Contractor shall provide documentation of matching funds in the amount of twenty-five
percent (25%) of the total price limitation indicated in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.8, Price Limitation. Matching funds may include:

7.1. A cash match is non-federal cash from the Contractor’'s own funds or cash donations
from non-federal third parties.

7.2.  An In-kind non-federal match is a non-monetary contribution of personnel, goods, or
services purchased or received from non-federal sources,

8. Schools above the state average of students receiving free or reduced lunch may include up
to 10% of the total 25% cash match as in-kind contributions.

Laconia Schoo!l District, SAU #30 Exhibit B Contractor Initials B‘*J
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Nevws Hampshire Department of Hezlth and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentatlon
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ail
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. !

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ali records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-ailowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shail
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or

" survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the

Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shali include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ali rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or pubtic grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT . TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federa! Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates,
or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In
no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated
or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until
such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be
required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the Account(s)
identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account,
in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the
State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet
those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered
by another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall
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provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Ii of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wil
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall inciude the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

2/27/17 D P

Date Name: ¥etwda Pliaanihea
Tl S gert Ve Do
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wili be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

2r2/12 /}fﬁ/ 7 /
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wiil include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

3/ 27/13 B L
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Contro! and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nationa! origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G (‘5‘(
Contractor Initials
Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblower protections
6127114
Rev. 1012114 Page 1 of 2 Date q’l l}l \ }



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

313 ——% /Z/“‘/Z"

Date Name: Rt dcom M2 o N~
Title: Sv\eﬁ,—; F‘.u\ )c A+

) Exhibit G '
! Contractor Initials 6 N

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistieblower protections

6127114 /
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

32> 1> ——P@ /

Date Name: B Ao " PA v AN -
Title: s+ le(r\ J\'}(J\ ru\,‘\'

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials [
Environmental Tobacco Smoke :}
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Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. "Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach’ in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXili, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “BIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials ‘)VJ

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(2)

“‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials g M

Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement { , _’_"L
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Exhibit |

3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PH

Exhibit | Contractor Initials (‘)
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement
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3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR

Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business % (‘J

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
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(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Reqgulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 5 of 6 Date 7“ 291 'q’



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Lownivo Sfooa) Oiskr 5}"
The State Name of the Contractor

~ R e R A S

Signature of Authorized Representative  Sidgnature of Authorized ‘Representative
N R —_ S
I M N e P o Reerder Mine ha N

Name of AutRortzed Representative Name of Authorized Representative
D{/e&c’:/ Supers ’\+emc)e Y
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
2\ 3 2% /17
Date Date
A
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) CONMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOPNOOhWN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

L2 2= 7~
Date ol iy q:‘i": '\_::.’:\A. C;v‘\:/[r\a A~

J
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials {
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: !g4 (/724 Dq 90000

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

coop\e?e'agreements?
Y NO ____ YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials %
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date q’



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
3\\\!\\& ﬂ \&\ (\dg m&) QDCA‘(A C,\d.( \[\.do hereby certify that:

(N&me of the elected Of‘icer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1am a duly elected Officer of \al [BY\\O\ %\(\CD\ D\Q\”\ C;\~

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on, \(xlxl L, 201+ -
' (Date)

RESOLVED: That the SU‘QQV\\’\‘\’CMA{ i’\‘k
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the X 1 day of July ,2017.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. Beendan M i nn. han  isthe duly elected g( XOCW\V\\'U"A{ldl’V

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

S Hed

of the Agency.

' (Siynature of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of (A \\O\q&()

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Q 7 day of ()U [‘i\ , 20 H" ,

ay Do 1y i be

(Name of Elected Officer-of the Agency)

(Perpu //h/L\

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)
REGINA THEEERGE

Coramission Expires: Notary Public.
My Commission Expires:
April 17, 2018
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NH Public Risk Management Exchange C E RTIF I CATE OF COVE RAG E

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex’) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex’ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non- member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex’, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex’ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party’s per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member’s per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage’s C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standlng of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex>. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage:
Laconia School District 729 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex®
SAU #30 Bow Brook Place
39 Harvard Street 46 Donovan Street
PO Box 309 Concord, NH 03301-2624
Laconia, NH 03246
1 - ‘ _ TypeofCoverage . = Eig’“'" 5.!!! Date! Ex{n,;)irajﬂon! o Date! Limits - NH Statutory Lilts May Afﬁbly.ifﬂot: '
X General Liability (Occurrence Form) 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000
Professional Liability (describe) General Aggregate $ 5,000,000
Claims Fire D Al
[:] Ma(lie [:] Occurrence ﬁ::; amage (Any one
Med Exp (Any one person)
| X_| Automobile Liability 71112017 7/1/2018 e
Deductible  Comp and Coll: $1,000 Combined Single Limit $5,000,000
{Each Accident)
Any auto Aggregate $5,000.000
X Workers’ Compensation & Employers’ Liability 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 X Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000
Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000
Disease ~ Policy Limit
X Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:
$1,000
Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER: | | Additional Covered Party I I Loss Payee Primex’ — NH Public Risk Management Exchange
By: Tammy Denven
New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services Date:  7/26/2017 tdenver@nhprimex.org
129 Pleasant St. Please direct inquires to:
Concord. NH 03301 Primex’ Claims/Coverage Services
' 603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax
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Centificate of Advanced Graduate Studies
Educational Leadership

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH 03264
Anticipated Completion: 2018

Masier of Education
Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH 03264
Self-Designed program concentrating in Anthropology

Bachelor of Science Degree in Cultursl Anthropology
James Madison University, Harrisonburg, VA 22807
Minors: (Geclogy and Religion

rofeszin rien

Administrater, Office of School Wellness, Laconia School District, Laconia, NH 4/28/14 - Pregent

Safe Schools/Healthy Students (S5/HS) Program Divector

¢ Program Director for SS/HS: $8.6 million grant awarded by U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) to decreass student exposure to violence, incrense positive school culture and climste,
increase access to behavioral and mentsl health services, increase early childhood screening, decrease incidents of
suspennion and expulsion, and ensure coltural and linguistic competence. Responsibilities: divect, manage, and
coardinate the implementation of this new program and all activities under this grant, including fiscal
management, staff supervision, data collection, analysis and reporting, and act as a Haison with copmunity
partners, NH DOE and other various state agencies and organizations.

Project AWARE Program Director

+ Approximately $1060,000 SAMHSA grant awarded 1o incresse the awareness and ability of youth-serving adults
in the Laconia public schools and community to adequately support and help youth who may be experiencing 8
mental health or substance use challenge or who 1nsy be in crisis by providing Youth Mental Health First Aid
training, Responsibilities: direct, manage, snd coordinate grant ectivities, including fiscel management, staif
supervigion, data collection, analysis, and reporting.

School Climate Transformation Grant (BUTG) Program Director

¢  Program Director for SCTG: §1 million grent awarded by U.S. Department of Bducation’s Office of Elernentary
and Secondary Education’s Office of Safe and Healthy Students (OSHS) to build district capacity to provide,
improve and expand multi-ticred systems of School-wide Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports
{(SWPBIS) to the 2,086 school-age children and adoiescents attending Elm, Pleasant and Woodland Blementary
Schools, Laconia Middle School, and Laconia High School. Responsibilities: direct, manage, and coordinate the
implementation of this new program and all activiiies under this grant, inchuding fiscal managerment, staff
supervision, data collection, analysis and reporting, end act as 8 Haison with community partners, NH DOE and
other various state agencies and organizations,

McKinney-Vento Sub-grant Program Director

¢ Program Director for $71,010 sub-grant from the NH Department of Education to provide supports to our students

end their families who are experiencing homelessness districtwide. -
NH FAST Forward 2020 Program Director

s  NH Depariment of Education was awarded $12 million grant from SAMHSA. The primary goal of NH Families

and Systems Together (FAST) Forwand for Children and Youth 2020 is to support the expansion and




sustainability of a state level system of care (SOC) for children, youth, and their families. The resulting
infrastructure will expand the array of supports for children/youth with a diagnosable serious emotional
disturbance (SED). This grant supporis expanded services for Laconia students pre-K through graduation at the
PBIS Tier I level.

Eduecation Consultant, NH Department of Education 11/2009 - 4/25/14

Burean of Special Education, Concord, NH; Responsibilities: direct, manage, and coordinate various projects, grants, and
compliance monitoring activities. This requires research, writing, data retrisval and analysis, fiscal oversight and budget
development, educational information dissemination, staff supervision, and excellent custorer service.
= Project Director, Safe Schools and Healthy Students State Planning Grant: $8.6 million grant awarded by the U.S.
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) to work with three local school districts
and the N.H. Bureau of Behavioral Health to decrease student exposure to violence, increase positive school
culture end climate, increase access to behavioral and mental health services, increase early childhood screening,
decrease incidents of suspension and expulsion, and ensure cultural and linguistic competence.
»  (rant proposal writer of Requests for Proposals (RFPs) and Requests for Applications (RFAs) to US
Departments.
= Create and develop RFPs for NHDOE expenditure of state and federal discretionary funding; RFP proposal
reviewing; Grant management and fiscal oversight of federal and state grants.
«  Project Consultant, Next Steps NH: College, Career, and Life Readiness: a $3.6 million State Performance

Development Grant from the US Department of Education.

Responsible for Governor & Council processes for contract/grant approvals and fund expenditore.

Oversight of NH district’s IDEA/Preschool & ARRA federal grants

Provide technical assistance and direct support to NH achool districts and parents of students with disabilities.

Represent NHDOE at NH legislative hearings and committee meetings regarding House and Senate bills that

affect the education of students with disabilities, including verbal and written testimony and fiscal note

development.

»  Policy and Data responsibilities: Collect, analyze and interpret data and policies; use data to inform decision
making; Develop and submit reports for US Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs.

«  Conduct educational program reviews and evaluations to ensure compliance with federal and state regulations
through onsite visits to schools to monitor educational standards and practice, inchuding preparing written reports,
recommending approval actions, corrective action plans, and suggesting program improvements,

e QOversight of the Translation Services project that provides translated special education and other documents for
parents and families in NH whose first language is other than English.

o Lijaison for all NH County Departments of Correction, the state prison’s Granite State High School, and NH
school districts regarding the population of special education students, age 17 — 21, who are incarcerated.

« Qversight and coordination of NHDOE’s Indicator 13 ~ Secondary Transition efforts for NH’s State Performance
Plan for Special Education

+ Responsible for federal reporting of Indicator 1: Graduation & Indicator 2: Dropout & Indicator 13: Secondary
Transition for NH's State Performance Plan for Special Education.

B % B B

Program Specialist ILL, NH Department of Edccation 12/2007-6/2006

Bureau of Special Education, Concord, NH
» Program Coordinator for Educational Surrogate Parent Program, Technical Assistance Consultants (TAC)
Program & IEP Facilitation Program
« Project Director: Achievement for Dropout Prevention and Excellence II (APEX II) and Achievement for Dropout
Prevention and Excellence 1Tl (APEX IIT) — both were federal grants awarded to the NHDOE from the US
Department of Education to support the implementation of PBIS in ten high schools in NH

Adjunct Faculty, Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH 12/2011 - 8/2012
Science Teacher, Waterville Valley Academy, Waterville Valley, NH 11/2005 — 4/2006
Graduate Assistant, Teaching Fellowship, Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH 972003 — 6/2005



Field Matoralist, Inside the Qutdoors, Orange County Dept. of Education, Costs Mesa, CA 272003 - 72003
Teacher Assistant, Jarnes Madison Undversily, Geology Department, Harrisonburg, VA B2000 - 5/2002

Research Eepericnce
s Moaster Theais: The Rive of Femnles in Education and the Labor Force: Transitions in Amaricon Culture

¢ Oraduste Ethnographic Fieldwork: Hialy, Culturs! Emersion P
Researched [talian cultyre via emersion with an Italian family in Amelis, Unbris
wie Research, PSU Anthropology Department
Researched beliefs, rituals, and colture of the Maasai in Kenya and Tanzania
Undergraduate Bthnographic Fieldwork, IMU Anthropology Departinent
Researched role of prayer and ritual in local Islamdic Commmunity via emersion in local mosque
Inverichrate Paleontologist Lab Technician, Virginia Museum of Natural History, NSF Grani,
Researched, sorted & identified mvertebrate species from samples along the east coast of the Undted
States for documeniation of species’ numbers and geologie time span for collections” records

gl Activities and Mem
NHDOE's New Hampshzm Corrmreby
Driversity and Culturs! Competence In or (January 2016}
Youth Mental Health First Aid Inst: January 2018)
WHDOEs. Barly Learning Workgroup (January 2015 — April 2015)
Winnipesaukee Public Health Council Member (June 2014 - presend)
Project EXTRA Advisory Commities Menmber (June 2014 - present)
Laconda Health and Wellness Academy Commitiee Meamber (Jung 204 - prasent)
Stand Up Laconia Executive Comnittee Member (2014-present)
State Management Tearn, Office of Student Wellness, NHDOE (2014-present)
NH Children’s Behavioral Health Cormmumity of Practice (2014-present)
Leadership Institute Series, NH School Administrators Association (2010}
Recipient of Graduate Teaching Fellowship (2003-2005)
NH Nationsl Guard Scholarship Committee Member
NH Children’s Behavioral Health Collsborstive Member

{CYF System of Care Leaderabip Team Member
cial Bducstion Administrators (NHASEA)

(April 2016 — present)

e School Services ESSA Advisory

@ & % w B & P B P B 2 G U W H B

e 11® Anmual New England Positive Bchaviamé immﬁmion& 3

® ‘{}Nﬁ 8 msmm on: Disability’s Transition Series ~ P
WH Pamily Support Conference 2012 ~ Panel Preseoter
¢ NH Vocational Rehabilitation Transition Internship ~ Presenter
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++ Master of Science in Mental Health Counseling, December 2010
* New England College, Henniker, NH

«» Bachelor of Science in Psychology with a concentration in mental health, May 2008
» Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

+* Licensure
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (LCMHC)
»  Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC)

Evneriencs

% Substance Abuse/Student Assistance Counselor, Laconia School District: January
2014 to present
*  Provide substance abuse treatment within the schools
< Implement aspects of the Project SUCCESS: Classroom education, prevention
groups and school wide awareness activities.
Provide support to students in crisis or those impacted by someone else’s
substance use

» Family Therapist, Child and Family Services: Family Counseling Program, May 2014
to present
= Provide individual and family counseling for people experiencing mental hesaith
or family problems.
*  Address problems such as anxiety, depression, communication, anger
management, trauma, and substance abuse.

23

Substance Abuse Clinician, Child and Family Services: Substance Abuse Treatment
ngam March 2011 to present
Provide individual and group counseling to adolescents and adults who are
experiencing problems with drug/alcohol use
= Use the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN) to assess clients
* Use the evidence-based Adolescent Community Reinforcement Approach
(ACRA) treatment model

% Family Therapist, Child and Family Services: Integrated Home-Based (1HB) Program,
August 2012 to November 2012 (per diem)

= Completed family assessments, treatment plans, monthly reports, and collaborated
with the case worker assigned to each case and worked together with the
JPPO/CPSW or other referral sources

»  Provided family counseling, and occasional individual counseling, as needed in
cach case

*  Aftended case specific meetings and appointments to include, but not lirited to:
court dates, teamn meetings, IEP meetings, etc.



<+ Direct Support Professional, [ndependent Services Network, August 2007 to March
2011
Provided direct support for individual’s with developmental disabilities
= Agsisted clients with activities of daily living, brought clienis out into the
community, and helped clients aohieve greater independenc
Participated in developing and implementing olient’s Individual Service Plans

< Clinjeal Tntern, Chdld and Famnily Services: Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment
Program, September 2006 to Jupe 2010

Provided individual counseling to adolescents who were sbusing ot dependent on

irugs or alcohol

© Used the Globsl

* Wrote tregtment p

praisal of Individus! Needs (GAIN) to assess clients
sith clients and assisted them in achieving thelr goals

% Project SUCCESS program

€ Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TE-CBT)
¢ NAMI NH’s Connect Suicide Prevention Program

% Adolescent Community Reinforcement Approach (ACRA)
% Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GATN)



Janet Brough

Ullartive

Employment

To obtain Administrative Assistant position

2015 ~ present Laconia School District Laconia, NH
Training and Marketing Coordinator — Safe Schools/Healthy Students

#  Marketing for Safe Schools/Healthy Students program including press releases, newsletters, flyers
#  Extensive computer skills — Microsoft Word, Publisher, One Note, Outicok, Office 365
+  Schedule and arganize training sessions for staff members including travel plans, if necessary
Maintain the programs brand and visual identity with respect to its philosophy and programs
on the website, soclal media, and other electronic communications
2608 ~ 2015 Laconia Schoo! District Laconla, NH
Administrative Asdstant to Superintentdent of Schools

#  Administrative Assistant dutles including answering telephones, secretarial support to
Superintendent of Schools, greeting public

s Extensive computer skills - Microsoft Word, Publisher, One Note, Outlook, Office 365
#  Schedule and organize training sessions for staff members including travel plans, if necessary

+  Independently manage updates to the school website, Including writing and developing new
content, creating new web pages and taking/uploading/embedding photos and video

= Malntain the school's brand and visual identity with respect to its philosophy and programs
on the website, social media, and other electronic communications

#  Attend and/or participate in schoo! events, classes, activities, and programs to seek out
compelling news and feature storles, and cuftivate positive relationships with the school's
facuRty, staff, and parents to advance its marketing and enroliment goals

¢ Manage a weekly electronic newsletter to Laconia Schoof District famliles that includes news
stories, photos, videos, and calendar information

= Competency in independent thinking, strong problem-salving, technical and
communications sklils, and demonstrated proficiency in writing, editing, video
production, social medla, and website management.

1997 - 2009 Laconla School District Laconla, NH
Administrative Assistant — Woodland Helghts Elementary School

= Performed a veriety of office secretarial, bookkeeping and administrative duties which required
a broad knowledge of both secretarial and dlerical practices and procedures.

«  Served as secretary to the schaol principal and staff. The position required a tharough
knowledge of al] school functions, procedures, building facilities, and applicable district
and school rules, regulations and policles.



saiipe Moo
Administrative assistant duties to support office funciion
Secretarial support for 4 secountants
Extensive computer use including Micrnsoft Office Sulte

+  Basic accounting using scoounting soRware

= [nterviewed clients and determined eligibility for RMedicaid
#  Data entry and word processing
Complied reports for state agency

1988 ~ 1590 Riultiple DWI Dfender Prs

& Data entey, word processing, compliing statisticsl reports
¢ Acdminitrative sesistant support Incuding answering telephones, greeting public
% Llgson with Digtvict Courts and Deparyment of Corrections

laconia State School Laconia, NH

*  Basic secretarial skills
#  Data entry and word procassing
s Payroll and time keeping for staff

1868 .1972 Pt Loma Migh School San Dingn, CA

flolegs Prep
Former Secretary and Board Member — Lakes Region Scholarship Foundation
Board member and Former Co-Chair — Santa Fund of the Greater Lakes Region

Member of Laconia School District Health and Wellness Council and Academy

Got Lunch Laconia Volunteer



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Laconia School District, SAU #30

Student Assistance Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE)

Name of Contract:

McKenzie Harrington-Bacote Administrator $85,000 10.00%
Jessica Conrad SAP Coordinator $50,000 100.00%
Janet Brough Marketing Coordinator $40,000 10.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line ltem 1 of Budget request)

McKenzie Harrington-Bacote Administrator $85,000 10.00%
Jessica Conrad SAP Coordinator $50,000 100.00%]|
Janet Brough Marketing Coordinator $40,000 10.00%
$0 0.00%}
$0
$0
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: i -2018-B X E-04

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

1.4 Contractor Address

Monadnock Family Services 64 Maint Street
Keene, NH 03431
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 3
603-357-4400 05-95-49-491510-2487-102- June 30, 2019 $ 68,940
500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V, Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

il

1.10 State Agency Telephone Nuniber
603-271-9246

1.11 Contractor Signature

Aly3gtr

1.12 Neme and Title of Contractor Signatory
e £ Yk

CHier ExeccoTive oL C ER

113~ Acknowledgement: State of /] ]

, County of (Assh/ A

On July 3r*4,88/ 77 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged thet s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peacs

[Seal] 4/%&// W

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

APamsla €. Cadmo)  Tuokie ¢f 4o Hoa [ Comm erpin Plufi )

i 1.14 State Agency Signature

"Y.'L-\/-S'Y\:_?-\ Date; g/ 3/ ) ]

1.15 Name end Title of State Agency Signatory
1y - 4
Skl S FEx, D\/—?c. —

1.16 Approval by thé N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persodne! (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorncy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o Ny Wl Mbor s

o 7[7)

1.18 Approval by the Governor nnd Executive Council (if applicabie)

By:

On:

Page 1 of 4




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Student Assistant Program (RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-04)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Monadnock Family Services

1.4 Contractor Address
64 Maint Street
Keene, NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
603-357-4400 05-95-49-491510-2407-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2019 $ 68,940

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 Contractor Signature

Al gt

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
S P F DY 2

Crier ExeccoTive fp ceR

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of /) H
On _Tu/1 QFH, 8617

, County of (Phash/ A<

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily

proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] /)/ ”""“‘&‘J W

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Pamefe ¢ Cadmoy Toonie vF H2 Hea = /CVM enpreen Fuf 7)

1.14 State Agency Si gnature

= iy 95 Date: 6)/3/) ]

1.15 Name and Tltle of State Agency Signatory

=t S f‘tx e r—

1.16 Approval by thé N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persodnel (if appllcable)

By: Director, On:

1.17

Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o N Qi Moy = 3[3(1)

1.18

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4




2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

s
R T
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Contractor Initials ([ f Q

Date
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3 of 4

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor Initials (2 /()
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials{j Z V)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall increase the State’'s existing prevention system
including, but not limited to, its resources and capacities to reduce substance
abuse and misuse in communities with high need and/or high risk populations
of:

1.3.1. Underage drinking among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty (20),
and high risk for persons aged twenty-one (21) to twenty-five (25);

1.3.2. Prescription drug misuse and abuse, and illicit opioid misuse and
abuse among persons aged twelve (12) to twenty-five (25).

1.4. The Contractor shall hire one full-time student assistance program (SAP)
counselor who shall:

1.4.1. Work a minimum of three (3) seven and one half (7.5) hour days
week throughout the school year, of which:

1.4.1.1. Two (2) days shall be dedicated to working directly with
students.

141.2. One (1) days shall be dedicated to conducting parent
education, community outreach, the New Comers Group,
the Children of Substance Misusing Parents Group, and a
Seniors Group.

1.4.2. Maintain office hours during the summer months on a flexible
schedule, as approved by the Department.

1.4.3. Become a Certified Prevention Specialist no later than twelve (12)
months from the contract effective date.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide services to students ranging from ages eleven
(11) through fifteen (15) at the Keene Middle School, which includes
populations from the towns of:

1.5.1. Harrisville.

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘ ' é 9
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A
1.5.2. Keene.
1.56.3. Marlow.
1.5.4. Nelson.
1.6.6. Stoddard.
1.56.6. Surry.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall screen individuals referred to the program, using the
guidance provided by the Department and an evidenced based screening tool
as recommended by NAMI-NH that includes an assessment of the individual,
family, substance use issues, and whether a referral to treatment is
appropriate. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Submit the evidenced based screening tool to be used to the
Department for approval within thirty (30) days of the contract
effective date.

2.1.2. Refer individuals to community treatment providers, as appropriate.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct individual and group sessions, as appropriate,
which include but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Conducting individual support sessions, as needed, with the purpose
of crisis intervention or to motivate students in participating in groups
modeled after Project Success.

2.2.2. Conducting individual sessions as needed to assist students with:

2.2.2.1. Identifying and resisting social and situational pressures to
use substances.

2.22.2. Correcting misperceptions about the prevalence and
acceptability of substance use.

2.2.2.3. Focusing on the personal consequences of substance
misuse and abuse.

2.2.2.4. Practicing resistance and coping skills.

2.2.2.5. Identifying barriers to using the newly developed skills or
adopting healthy attitudes.

2.2.3. Conduct the Newcomers Group, the Children of Substance Misusing
Parents Group and a Seniors Group beginning in year one and
expanding new groups in additional years as funding will allow that
are modeled after Project Success, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.2.3.1. Alcohol and other Drug Assessment Education Group (/)

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘E{
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.2.3.2. Sibling Group

2.2.3.3. Non-Users Group

2.2.3.4. Parents, Peers, and Partying Group

2.2.3.5. Users Group

2.2.3.6. Users/Children of Substance Misusing Parents Group
2.2.3.7. Recovery Group.

2.3. The Contractor shall administer pre- and post-assessments that measure
student attitudes toward drugs and alcohol to determine and monitor the
effectiveness of the Student Assistance Program and measure the impact of
student groups which include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Children of Substance Misusing Parents/Caregivers Group;
2.3.2. Senior Group.

2.4. The Contractor shall administer annual surveys, and provide results of the
surveys, during the period of March through May, which include but are not
limited to:

241. The Youth Risk Behavior Survey of all students in grades nine (9)
through twelve (12).

2.4.2. The Department provided survey for grades seven (7) through eight
(8).
2.5. The Contractor shall provide education sessions and/or materials, as

approved by the Department, to individuals and or groups, that may include,
but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Parent/caregiver education regarding prescription drug misuse,
underage drinking and binge drinking, within the school and
community.

2.5.2. Alcohol and other drug prevention education in middle school or high
school, using evidence based curriculum, such as Project Alert,
during seventh and ninth grade transitional years that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Adolescent alcohol, tobacco and other drug information.
2.5.2.2. Family Dynamics and pressures.
2.5.2.3. Skills for coping with stress and life pressure.

2.6. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school/community
centered environmental strategies that broadly reach populations within the
school and community and focus on alcohol and other drug prevention
messaging, including but not limited to:

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials 2 Z '-*-)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.6.1. Initiating health and wellness activities within the school buildings.
2.6.2. Participating in Red Ribbon Week activities.

2.6.3. Brainstorming ideas with student volunteers, which may result in
improvements for the school and the community.

2.6.4. Participating in Kick Butts Day.

2.7. The Contractor shall increase school and community awareness of the
Student Assistance Program services through media and marketing including
but not limited to print media and social media, which may include, but is not
limited to Facebook and Instagram in partnership with Department identified
organizations, including but not limited to the Partnership for a Drug Free NH.

2.8. The Contractor shall announce the intentions of the Student Assistance
Program in collaboration with community partners in their area which include,
but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Faith based organizations.
2.8.2. Police Department.

2.8.3. Sheriff's Department.
2.8.4. Emergency responders.

2.9. The Contractor shall evaluate existing school policies on alcohol and other
drugs within the first year of the contract and recommend improvements to
the existing policies based on best practice and according to
recommendations made by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse, Prevention, Intervention and Treatment

2.10. The Contractor shall implement improvements to the alcohol and other drug
school policies in Section 2.6 in year two (2) of the contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall participate in the Student Assistance Learning
Collaborative and other mandatory trainings as identified by the Department.

2.12. The Contractor shall allow a team authorized by the Department to meet with
staff on a quarterly basis or as needed to conduct a site visit. The Contractor
shall:

2.121. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of
contract compliance requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-
133.

2.12.2. Ensure the Department is provided with scheduled and unscheduled
access to Contractor staff and information that includes but is not

limited to:

2.12.2.1. Data
Monadnock Family Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘2 "( g:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit A

2.12.2.2. Financial records
2.12.2.3. Work sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Regional Public Health Network to
create a sustainability plan for continuation of the Student Assistance
Program beyond the contract end date, which shall be submitted to the
Department for approval no later than ninety (90) days prior to the contract
end date.

2.14. The Contractor shall work with the NH Center for Excellence, as needed, to
ensure evidence based interventions or core elements of evidence based
interventions (as approved by the Center for Excellence) are being
implemented with fidelity.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall input data on a monthly or quarterly basis in an online
database, as required by the Department, which shall include, but not be
limited to:

3.1.1. Number of students who participated in SAP activities
3.1.2. Demographic of students who participated in SAP activities.

3.1.3. Number of environmental strategies implemented as a result of SAP
services

3.1.4. Amount of funds received from other sources for SAP activities
and/or programming.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional reports or data as required by the
Department.

4. Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of six hundred fifty-seven
(657) students per year.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit the evidenced based screening tool described in
Section 2.1.1 to the Department no later than thirty (30) days from the
contract effective date.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13
to the Department for review and approval no later than ninety (90) days prior
to the contract completion date.

~
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Exhibit A

4.4,
5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall maintain a 90% response rate of pre- and post-
assessments described in Section 2.3.

5.2. A minimum of 50% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will have an unfavorable attitude toward drugs and alcohol.

5.3. A minimum of 75% of responders to the post-assessments described in
Section 2.3 will agree that participation in SAP activities had a positive impact
on how to effectively deal with peer pressure.

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘ zz/ VS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program (SAP)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalogue for
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.243, United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Partnership for
Success Grant.

2. State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be at an all-
inclusive rate of $48.00 per hour for a maximum value of $36,762 for State Fiscal Year 18
and $32,178 for State Fiscal Year 19.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for payment no later than the twentieth (20™)
working day of each month for the number of hours worked in the previous month.

4.2. Invoices shall include the date, the hours worked, who provided the work and a brief
description of the work completed in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
well as documentation of matching funds as described in Section 7, below.

43. Invoices shall be sent to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Attn: Financial Manager

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date identified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7 Completion
Date.

7. The Contractor shall provide documentation of matching funds in the amount of twenty-five
percent (25%) of the total price limitation indicated in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.8, Price Limitation. Matching funds may include:

71. A cash match is non-federal cash from the Contractor's own funds or cash donations
from non-federal third parties.

7.2.  An In-kind non-federal match is a non-monetary contribution of personnel, goods, or
services purchased or received from non-federal sources,

8. Schools above the state average of students receiving free or reduced lunch may include up
to 10% of the total 25% cash match as in-kind contributions.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ali forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as weli as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shali include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resuliting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has; or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

{a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.56. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regutations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates,
or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In
no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated
or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until
such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be
required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the Account(s)
identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account,
in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the
State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet
those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered
by another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall
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provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(¢) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;,
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

oa I O

Date N&me: PU [
Title: (" = 0
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

A sl QDMWJ\

Date me: Y /i
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wifl include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

/L)
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (f)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Heaith and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

'7/&/(3 W@M
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /l//
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(2)

“‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
Il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, uniess such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business /bJ

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials l /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PI-JU

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials ‘ //
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’'s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business [ / ‘A)

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. , v)

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services M M .iu/ux.w

The State Name of the Contractor

Yo - R e /e, gyl

Signature of Aulhorized Representative  Signature of Althorized Representative

- /-\
ey~ S 4o Ple s whiic
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
~ " - f N
Dvze fy— =
Title of Authori_zed Representative Title of Authorized Representative
g4 7/ 0>
Date ' Date

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor lnitialsy7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OENDOARWN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

24/ Sl Al ke
///

Date Nafhe: V4

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials é//‘/

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:_© 2 -6 0(Q 23y

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

\/ NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J ~ Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials{[

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MONADNOCK FAMILY
SERVICES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 05, 1924. 1
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concemed.

Business 1D: 62930

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 17th day of April A.D. 2017.

Dok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Jane Larmon , do hereby certify that:

{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of ___Monadnock Family Services
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __July 27, 2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the ___Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _28" day of ____July ,2017__
(Date Contract Signed)
4. __ Philip Wyzik is the duly elected Chief Executive Officer
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.
o b Ay

Slgnature o@é lected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of OND /),'/* —

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _Q R4, day of TJle ,204 1,

By Jane Larmon
{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

m

{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: 2?,/11,/3—(91 "'l

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
7/21/2017

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE 19 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NOQ RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE GOVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lisu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: [f the certificato holder s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
Masiello Insurance Agency

SSMe.o' Donna Croteau, AAI, President
PHOME _  ~(603) 283~1834 | EA%, noi, (6031 257-6616

Monadnock Family $Sarvices Inc
64 Main Street
Suite 201

63-A Island Street, Suite 1 jm'}z“mdonnac@maiello.com

INSURER(S] APFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Keene _ NH 03431 INSURER A :Amexrican States Ins Co = NIF 0207
INSURED msuRERs:Pe_erless/Lvii.__bgrty Mgt—u_ai 4198

IsyRER c:General Ins Co of America -~ NIF

INSURER O ;

INSURER E ;
Keene NH 03431 {NSURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:17-18 NIF; 17-18 LM REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PQUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TQ WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

1&5? TYPE OF INSURANCE “&f& wvp POLICY NUMBER POLICY mwﬁ& oy
| GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X _| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY [ DAWAGE TORENTED s 1,000,000
c J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR x | x blcI6so41340 1/23/2017 [1/23/2018 | yep exp (any cneparson) | § 10,000
| X | AT per written contract PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY | $ 1,090,000
| X | Employees/Volunteers AT GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 1,000,000
e PR x| oc '
[ avTomosiLe CiasiLmy chc;:ﬁwﬁn Emﬁﬁt')smeus TINTT . 1,000,000
B __)5_‘ ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED Ba9087814 M/19/2017 [1/19/2018 | goDILY INJURY {Per accident) |
— AUTOS nggwnso [ PROPERTY DAMAGE ~
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS | (Pef vccident) s
Uninsured Motorists - B! 3 1,000,000
UMBRELLAUAB | X | gocur EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
A ’_; EXCESS LIAB CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE ) 1,000,000
pep | X | Revenmion s 10,000 015U41753870 1/23/2017 [1/23/2018 .
WORKERS COMPENSATION 5 [NC STATUé | log';l-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vin
3:1 ggf{omﬁ;g:m&gﬁgzﬁxscwve NIA L  E.L_EAGH ACGIDENT $ 500,000
{Mandatory in NH) 9014927 7/19/2017 17/19/2018 ¢\ pisease - A EMPLOYES § 500,000
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L DISEASE - POLIGY LIMIT I [] 500,000
C | Professional Liability LP77674930 [1/23/2017 01/23/2018 | gqch Occurrence 1,000,000
Qccurrence Form r Aggregate Umit 3,000,900

OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, if more spacs Is required} .
All licensed staff, clinicians, except foxr doctors/psychiatrists are covered under the Monadnock Family

Services policies while employed at Monadnock Family Service. This Profeasional Liability provides
Contingent Coverage for Monadnock Family Services for "actions of the doctor/psychiatriat” named in the
suit., Primary coverage for the doctor/psychiatrist is not provided however is verified to ba elsewhere.

125 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
slawrence@dhhs.stata.nh.us | sHouLD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH DHHS ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

D Croteau, Prasident/ &svm&otzau_

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INS025 (201005) 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Monadnock Family Services, Inc.

Mission, Vision and Values
Mission
Our mission is to be a source of health and hope for people and the communities in which they live,

particularly as it pertains to mental illness. We create services that heal, education that transforms,

and advocacy that brings a just society for everyone.

Vision
MFS strives for respectful community response to the needs of citizens with mental illness and other

behavioral disorders. Individuals and families will have access to support services and opportunities

necessary to pursue a life course of their choosing.
Values in Action

Respect: courteous regard toward all

Excellence: exceed expectations in all areas of service
Access: timely and affordable care

Innovation: pursuit of better care through creativity
Inclusion: full integration into community life
Learning: empowerment through knowledge
Collaboration: achieving goals through alliances

Independence: freedom to achieve self-determination
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To the Board of Directors of STRATHAM
Monadnock Family Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Monadnock Family Services,
Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of cash flows, and
notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Monadnock Family Services, Inc. as of June 30, 2016
and 2015, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in its nets assets
for the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. ;

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Monadnock Family Services, Inc.’s June 30, 2015 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated October 1, 2015. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The schedule of functional revenues on pages 17 - 19 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

-%m) /‘/eﬂ.-‘...u -~ %&»«7’?
ﬂg,,.,_g Heseeei

October 21, 2016
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



MONARNOCK FAMILY SERVICES, INC,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2016 WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

ASSETS
Temporarily Permanently 2016 2015
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 283,965 $ 76453 $ - $ 360,418 $ 587,221
Accounts receivable:
Client fees 240,806 - - 240,806 303,453
Medicaid and Medicare 413,369 - - 413,369 427,009
Insurance 97,164 - - 97,164 68,783
Other 19,843 - - 19,843 28,029
Altowance for doubtful accounts (364,263) - - (364,263) (397,985)
Prepaid expenses 48 317 - - 48,317 63,756
Total current assets 739,201 76,453 - 815,654 1,081,266
PROPERTY
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 485,342 - - 485,342 458,877
Vehicles 132,658 - - 132,658 132,658
Building and ieasehold improvements 101,883 - - 101,883 120171
Total 719,883 - - 719,883 711,706
Less accumulated depreciation 552,379 - - 552,379 484,509
Property, net 167,504 - - 167,504 227,197
OTHER ASSETS
Due from affiliates 16,661 - - 16,661 119,198
Interest in net assets of Foundation 361,352 141,272 81,214 583,838 596,504
Total other assets 378,013 141,272 81,214 600,499 715,702
Total assets §1284718 $ 217728 $ 81214 § 1583657 2024169
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Demand notes payable $ 150,000 $ - 3 - $ 150,000 § 100,000
Current portion of capital lease '
obligations - - - - 4,771
Accounts payable 97,126 - - 97,126 140,504
Due to State of New Hampshire - - 17,387
Accrued salaries, wages, and related
expenses 303,578 - - 303,578 507,858
Other current liabilities 46,084 - - 46,084 35,988
Total current liabilities 536,788 - - 596,788 806,508
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 687,930 - - 687,930 915,790
Temporarily restricted - 217,725 - 217,725 220,653
Permanently restricted - - 81,214 81,214 81,214
Total net assets 687,930 217,725 81,214 986,869 1,217,657
Total liabilities and net assets £1284718 § 2177258 & 81214 § 1583657 £2024163

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES, INC,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

LS AATRELI-SNE iAW1l 4L A L AL AN AS A A SRR LA LA LL L ALL e

Temporarily Permanently 2016 2015
Unrestricted  Restricted  Restricted Total Total
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Public support and revenue
Program service fees $ 8003066 § - 3 - §$8003066 $ 7,826,086
Federal funding 522,943 - - 522,943 526,219
Donations 257,456 - - 257,456 252,178
United Way 207,131 - - 207,131 217,147
Local/County government 155,664 - - 155,664 189,707
Program sales 108,335 - - 108,335 111,028
Other public support 129,530 - - 129,530 86,422
State of New Hampshire - - - - -
Rental income 14,060 - - 14,060 31,287
Net gain (loss) on beneficial interest
in Foundation (9,738) (2,928) - (12,666) (17,697)
Other income 59,391 - - 59,391 115,031
Total public support and revenue 9,447,838 (2,928) - 9,444,910 9,337,408
Expenses
Program services
Children & adolescents 2,235176 - - 2,235,176 2,233,203
Multi-service team 1,597,202 - - 1,597,202 1,269,400
Emergency services/assessment 904,507 - - 904,507 689,208
Other non-BBH 867,052 - - 867,052 930,292
Older adult services 812,740 - - 812,740 812,569
Maintenance 708,940 - - 708,940 1,118,414
ACT team 605,872 - - 605,872 467,616
Community residence 528,585 - - 528,585 510,597
Community education & training 143,623 143,623 162,063
Non-eligibles 139,597 - - 139,597 204,791
Vocational services 138,485 - - 138,485 72,850
Restorative partiat hospital 39,751 - - 39,751 144
Supportive living 34,182 34,182 74277
Supporting activities
Administration 919,986 - - 919,986 732,072
Total expenses 9,675,698 - - 9,675,698 9,267,496
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (227,860) (2,928) - (230,788) 69,912
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 915,780 220,653 81,214 1,217,657 1,147,745
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 687930 § 217726 §5..81214 § 986869 3 1217657

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES, INC,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Temporarily Permanently 2016 2015
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total Jotal
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (227860) $ (2928) §$ - $ (230,788 $ 69912
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 68,739 - - 68,739 73,660
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts (33,721) - - (33,721) (123,208)
Loss on beneficial interest
in Foundation 9,738 2,928 - 12,666 17,697
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 57,092 - - 57,092 612,810
Prepaid expenses 15,439 - - 15,439 (17,554)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (43,378) - - (43,378) 37,999
Due to State of New Hampshire (17,387) - - (17,387) (225,534)
Accrued salaries, wages,
and related expenses (204,280) - - (204,280) 89,131
Other current liabilities 10,096 - - 10,096 13,801
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (365,522) e - (365,522) 548,714
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in due from affiliate 102,537 - - 102,537 (53,946)
Additions to property and equipment (9,047) - - (9,047) (25,830}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 93,490 - - 93,490 (79,776)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment of capital lease obligations (4,771) - - 4,771) (20,492)
Net borrowings (repayments) on demand notes payable 50,000 - - 50,000 {175,000}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED iN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 45,229 - - 45,229 {195492)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
EQUIVALENTS (226,803) - - (226,803) 273,445
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 510,768 76,453 - 587.221 313,775
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 283985 § 76453 § - $ 360418 §$. 5687221
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $_ 4528 § 6828

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC, Continued

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Emergency  Restorative

Children & Older Aduit Services/ Partial Vocational
Maintenance Adolescents Services Assessment Hospital ervices
PERSONNEL COSTS .
Salaries and wages $ 472,014 31402162 $ 486072 $ 589869 $ 25739 § 93,598
Employee benefits 108,794 378,474 106,058 164,301 9,889 24,562
Payroll taxes 34,512 98,901 36,388 42 592 1,805 6,909
PROFESSIONAL FEES
Substitute staff 6,773 34,072 - 2,976 - 625
Audit fees 3,154 10,348 3471 3,267 167 650
Legal fees 1,463 6,198 1,612 1,199 76 289
Other professional fees 39 974 - 37 - 8
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
Journals and publications 8 494 288 13 - -
In-Service training 4 210 43 2 - -
Conferences and conventions 1,437 1,031 581 1,747 418 320
Other staff development 606 1,038 488 584 - -
OCCUPANCY COSTS
Rent 44 437 114,723 51,777 55,552 - 3,191
Heating costs 2 122 - - - -
Other utilities 53 273 - - - -
Repairs and maintenance 138 1,810 1,075 165 799 36
Taxes - - - - - -
Other occupancy costs 6,130 21,764 2,716 5,811 - 325
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES
Office supplies and equipment 2,355 6,516 6,592 3,104 29 605
Building and household 380 601 1,581 515 - 129
Educational and training 56 185 - 37 - -
Food 367 9,506 20,018 288 73 169
Medical supplies 768 663 3,348 730 - 153
Other consumable supplies 1,347 2,658 684 1,241 25 253
DEPRECIATION 2,544 8,150 28,922 2,684 123 525
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,535 6,994 2,072 1,360 1 276
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 372 1,007 710 378 16 76
ADVERTISING 159 421 135 257 4 33
PRINTING 54 301 28 74 - 16
TELEPHONE 7.029 26,842 10,164 11,071 33 1,722
POSTAGE 396 1,669 551 381 1 62
TRANSPORTATION
Staff 2,486 65,704 9,034 4,876 187 2,036
Clients 138 144 21,948 - - -
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS
Client services 51 5,260 2,393 43 - 1
INSURANCE
Malpractice and bonding 5,363 12,900 4,062 5,233 151 1,091
Vehicles - - 5,439 - - -
Comprehensive property and
liability 3,980 12,926 4,338 4,097 215 820
MEMBERSHIP DUES 18 24 100 17 - 4
INTEREST EXPENSE - - - - - -
OTHER (22) 111 52 6 - 1

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES § 708940 §2235176 § 812740 $ 9040507 § 30751 3§ 138480

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES, INC, Continued
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Community
Multi-Service ACT Community Supportive  Education &
Non-Eligibles Team Team Residence Living Training
PERSONNEL COSTS
Salaries and wages $ 76048 $ 951033 $ 402,156 $ 221374 § 10529 § 92,649
Employee benefits 31,259 267,069 96,353 58,423 3,168 17,396
Payroll taxes 5,431 70,449 28,161 16,329 752 7,058
PROFESSIONAL FEES
Substitute staff - 10,337 20 165,338 - -
Audit fees 533 8,013 2177 1,244 116 559
Legal fees 165 4,295 1,077 1,017 27 154
Other professional fees - 119 - 6 - -
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
Journals and pubiications - 58 - - - -
tn-Service training 1 355 4 4 - -
Conferences and conventions 452 9,333 2,156 39 140 425
Other staff development 441 1,583 4 - - -
OCCUPANCY COSTS
Rent 14,497 106,182 28,785 6,811 16,515 5,181
Heating costs 77 17 - - - -
Other utilities 12 17 - - - -
Repairs and maintenance 15 514 106 1,073 - 464
Taxes - - - - - -
Other occupancy costs 1,505 11,909 2,845 47 - 773
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES
Office supplies and equipment 381 8,715 1,611 1,199 23 389
Building and household 52 1,289 496 5,531 - 16
Educational and training 278 314 - - - 1,894
Food 61 2,874 486 28,975 - 6
Medical supplies - 2,481 346 476 - -
Other consumable supplies 86 5,976 367 368 17 1.366
DEPRECIATION 426 6,573 1,779 4,161 82 410
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 473 4,194 840 21 - 219
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 51 976 390 129 11 53
ADVERTISING 455 756 110 364 4 47
PRINTING 252 301 47 1 - 147
TELEPHONE 3,304 25,858 7,901 7,947 1,566 2,312
POSTAGE 88 866 216 34 5 299
TRANSPORTATION
Staff 1,606 43,178 9,747 1,133 351 972
Clients - 117 750 1,450 - -
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS
Client services 8 23,975 12,282 301 661 105
INSURANCE
Malpractice and bonding 407 14,790 1,807 1,416 84 447
Vehicles - - - 1,813 - -
Comprehensive property and fiability 648 10,059 2,712 1,556 131 678
MEMBERSHIP DUES 585 202 138 5 - 1,644
INTEREST EXPENSE - - - - - -
OTHER - 2,425 3 - - 7,960
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 4 130597 51597202 § _€00872 § 5284885 § 34182 § 143.823

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES.INC,

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Other Total 2016 2015
Non-BBH Eroarams Administration  Totals Totals

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $ 448500 $5271,743 § 533,128 § 5804871 $ 5,551,705

Employee benefits 158,396 1,424 142 83,734 1,507,876 1,460,708

Payroll taxes 32,242 381,529 37,729 419,258 393,681
PROFESSIONAL FEES

Substitute staff 650 220,791 9,365 230,156 254,741

Audit fees 3,012 36,711 689 37,400 36,699

Legal fees 856 18,428 20,890 39,318 17,724

Other professional fees 21,994 23,177 41,094 64,271 47,466
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications 132 993 550 1,543 2,240

In-Service training - 623 40 663 35

Conferences and conventions 1,328 19,407 5 19,412 7,830

Other staff development 75 4,819 1,040 5,859 11,632
OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent 55,651 503,302 89,541 592,843 516,688

Heating costs - 218 - 218 1,585

Cther utilities - 355 - 355 1,096

Repairs and maintenance 235 6,430 165 6,595 5,228

Taxes - - - - -

Other occupancy costs 4,864 58,689 17,540 76,229 75,491
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment 7,883 39,402 6,862 46,264 54,695

Building and household 1,008 11,598 909 12,507 12,141

Educational and training 4,000 6,764 - 6,764 185

Food 1,180 64,013 177 64,190 58,522

Medical supplies 4 8,969 2 8,971 7,653

Other consumable supplies 19,749 34,137 577 34,714 35,821
DEPRECIATION 9,791 66,170 2,569 68,739 73,660
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,115 19,100 3,140 22,240 20,946
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 24,864 29,033 200 29,233 30,026
ADVERTISING 6,568 9,313 21,475 30,788 35,046
PRINTING 5,670 6,891 1,113 8,004 7,485
TELEPHONE 12,851 118,600 8,614 127,214 124,231
POSTAGE 7,685 12,253 3,000 15,323 14 449
TRANSPORTATION

Staff 3,769 145,079 5,214 150,293 166,803

Clients B 24 547 - 24 547 35,203
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

Client services 375 45,455 281 45,736 62,141
INSURANCE

Malpractice and bonding 2,492 50,243 1,740 51,983 39,006

Vehicles - 7.252 - 7,252 7.063

Comprehensive property and liability 4,372 46,532 2,356 48,888 64,385
MEMBERSHIP DUES 1,652 4,389 1,274 5,663 4,206
INTEREST EXPENSE - - 7,066 7,066 8,928
OTHER 24,079 34,615 17 837 52452 20,352

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $.867052 $8785712 § 919986 $9675608 39267490

See Notes to Financial Statements



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

ORGANIZATION OF THE CORPORATION

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit corporation, organized
under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related
non-mental health programs.

The Organization operates in the Monadnock region of the State of New Hampshire.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of Monadnock Family Services, Inc. have been prepared on the

accrual basis of accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables
and other assets and liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are
determined by the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of
the Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor imposed
stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Organization.

Permanently Restricted: Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and in certain
circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor - imposed
stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to product
income for general or specific purposes.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had unrestricted, temporarily restricted
and permanently restricted net assets.

Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.



Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restrictions. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of

three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair value at the
date of donation. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized.
Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to
amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years
Building and leasehold improvements 5-40 Years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along
with the related accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $68,740 and $73,660 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time
The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services are provided or expenditures are
incurred.

Revenue

Net patient revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are
rendered and are adjusted in future periods, as final amounts are determined.
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A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-
party payors. The Organization receives reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and
private third party payors at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by
these programs. The difference between established billing rates and the actual rate of
reimbursement is recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated
contractual allowances is provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of
financial position date.

Advertising
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized

on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting activities benefited.

Eair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in
generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that
fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with ASC
820-10, the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income
and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The
three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.
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The carrying amount of cash, prepaid expense, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an Organization that is
not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Management has evaluated the Organization’s tax positions and concluded that the
Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions,
the Organization is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the United States
Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2012.

INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOUNDATION

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of assets held by Monadnock Regional
Foundation for Family Services, Inc. The Organization and the Foundation are considered
financially interrelated Organizations under FASB ASC Topic No. 958-605, Not-for-Profit
Entities - Transfers of Assets to a Nonprofit Organization or Charitable Trust That Raises
or Holds Contributions for Others. The fair value of the Foundation’s assets, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was $599,557
and $633,841 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The cost basis of the Foundation’s
assets was $591,487 and $612,213 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

DEMAND NOTES PAYABLE
The Organization maintains the following demand notes payable:

Demand note payable with a bank, subject to bank renewal on June 30, 2016. The
maximum amount available at June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $250,000. At June 30, 2016
and 2015 the interest rate was stated at 4.25 and 4%, respectively. The note is renewable
annually, collateralized by all the business assets of the Organization and guaranteed by a
related nonprofit organization (see Note 11). There was no balance outstanding at June
30, 2016 and 2015.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization entered into a demand note
payable with a bank that expires in February of 2017. The maximum amount available at
June 30, 2016 was $150,000. At June 30, 2016 the interest rate was 5%. The note is
collateralized by all the business assets of the Organization, real estate and assignment of
leases and rents owned by Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. (a related party,
see Note 11) and is guaranteed by Monadnock Community Service Center, inc. (a related
party, see Note 11). There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 2016.

During January 2013, the Organization entered into a demand note payable agreement
with Monadnock Regional Foundation for Family Services, Inc. (a related party, see Note
11). The interest rate is stated at 2.1%. At June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounts outstanding
under the demand note payable were $150,000 and $100,000, respectively.

12



For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, interest expense under the demand notes
payable was $7,066 and $8,927, respectively.

RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

The temporarily restricted net assets consist of a contribution received by the Organization
that had not been spent for the specified purpose of the donor as of June 30, 2016 and
2015. The permanently restricted net assets consist of a beneficial interest in a
Foundation.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. Under the plan
employees can make voluntary contributions to the plan of up to approximately 15% of
gross wages. All full-time employees are eligible to participate when hired, and are eligible
to receive employer contributions after one year of employment. The Organization's
discretionary contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were
$24,301 and $42,032, respectively.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 approximately 75% and 76% respectively, of
the total revenue was derived from Medicaid. The future existence of the Organization, in
its current form, is dependent upon continued support from Medicaid.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 62% and 52% of the total accounts
receivable balances at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on past due accounts, nor are its accounts receivable pledged
as collateral, except as discussed in Note 4.

OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Organization has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain
facilities and office equipment. The terms of these leases range from 36 to 63 months.
Rent expense under these agreements aggregated $615,082 and $537,632 for the years
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount
2017 $ 18,138
2018 17,628
2019 12,372
2020 1,860
2021 930
Total $ 50928

See to Note 11 for information regarding a lease agreement with a related party.
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10.

1.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Organization had entered into capital lease agreements for computer software and
computer equipment. The economic substance of the leases was that the Organization
was financing the acquisition of the equipment through the leases. These capital leases
had interest rates between 6.24% and 8.83%. These capital leases were due in monthly
installments aggregating $3,835 in June 2015 and had maturity dates ranging from
September 2014 through January 2016. These capital leases were repaid in full during the
year ended June 30, 2016.

At June 30, 2016 and 2015 the Organization had gross capitalized costs of capital leases
of $152,583 and $152,583, respectively, and accumulated depreciation of $116,206 and
$85,803, respectively.

MEDICAID CONTINGENCY PAYMENTS

During April 2013 the State of New Hampshire implemented a change in the entity that
processes Medicaid payments for the State. During this transition the new service
provider was initially unable to consistently reimburse service providers due to various
issues. In order to aid the cash flow of service providers during the transition, the State of
New Hampshire began disbursing cash in advance of service billings. After the initial
disbursements to service providers the State of New Hampshire began reducing payments
for billed services to the service providers by a portion of the advance payments.
However, shortly thereafter, the State of New Hampshire stopped its policy of reducing
payments for billed services and stopped their recoupment of advance payments. During
February of 2015 the State of New Hampshire resumed recoupment of advance
payments. At June 30, 2015 $17,387 was due to the State of New Hampshire. The
balance was repaid in full during the year ended June 30, 2016.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Monadnock Family Services, Inc. is related to the following nonprofit corporations as a
result of their articles of incorporation and common board membership.

Related Party Function

Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. Provides real estate services and
property management assistance.

Monadnock Regional Foundation for Endowment for the benefit of Monadnock
Famity Services, Inc. Family Services, Inc.

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. has transactions with the above related parties during its
normal course of operations. The significant related party transactions are as follows:

Due from Affiliate

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had a receivable due from Monadnock
Regional Foundation for Family Services, Inc. in the amount of $11,328 and $32,906,
respectively. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had a receivable due from
Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. in the amount of $5,333 and $86,292,
respectively. There are no specific terms of repayment and no stated interest.
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12.

Rental Expense

The Organization leases office space from Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc.
under the terms of tenant at will agreements. Monadnock Family Services, Inc. has the
perpetual right to extend the leases. Total rental expense paid under the terms of the
leases was $556,500 and $460,980 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Management Fee
The Organization charges Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. for administrative

expenses incurred on its behalf. Management fee revenue aggregated $71,375 and
$70,355 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Guarantee
One of the Organization's demand notes payable is guaranteed by Monadnock
Community Service Center, Inc.

Demand Notes Payable
The Organization maintains a demand note payable agreement with Monadnock Regional
Foundation for Family Services, Inc.

During January 2013, the Organization entered into a demand note payable agreement
with Monadnock Regional Foundation for Family Services, Inc. (see Note 4). At June 30,
2016 and 2015 $150,000 and $100,000, respectively was outstanding under the demand
note payable. Interest expense under the demand note payable was $2,538 and $2,100
for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Organization maintains a demand note payable agreement with a bank that
Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. has pledged real estate and assigned leases
and rents to secure.

Co-obligation
The Organization is co-obligated on certain mortgage notes of Monadnock Community

Service Center, Inc.

CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal sources.
Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within
a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If
expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have
been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been
determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2016.
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13.

14.

15.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances that, at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up
to $250,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with these
accounts. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, cash balances in excess of FDIC coverage
aggregated $116,145 and $299,154, respectively.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements to
conform to the current year presentation. These classifications had no effect on the
previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by
management to determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in
the financial October 21, 2016, the date when the financial statements were available to
be issued.
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC, Continued

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Emergency Restorative

Children & Older Aduit Services/ Partial Vocational
Maintenance Adolescents Services Assessment Hospital Services

Program fees:

Net client fees $ 29884 $ 21855 $ 182667 $ 15727 § 484 § (684)

Medicaid 396,654 2,718,173 466,089 220,472 40,748 96,644

Medicare 177,717 1,459 1,769 11,346 - 1,689

Other Insurance 89,605 95,077 6,508 92,424 - 570

Other program fees - 25 - - - -
Program Sales:

Service and Production - 12,620 - 440 - -
Public Support:

United Way - 13,500 31,250 78,148 - -

Local/County Government - 21,754 - 125,910 - -

Donations 12,061 24,361 71,522 - - 4,000

Other public support - - 4,030 - - -

State of New Hampshire - BDAS - - - - - -
Federal Funding:

Other Federa! Grants - - 16,834 - - -

PATH - - - 37,000 - -

Bureau of Behavioral Health - - - 132,590 - -
Rentat income - - 744 - - -
Net (loss) gain on beneficial interest

in Foundation - - - - - -
Other 151 971 748 28 - -

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $.706072 $£2900795 § 782161 £ 714080 3 41242 § 102219

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC, Continued

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Community
Multi-Serivce ACT Community Supportive  Education &
Non-Eligibles Team Team Residence Living Training
Program fees:
Net client fees $ 13990 $ 33682 §$§ 21627 $ 742 3 (4403) § (66)
Medicaid 29,964 1,873,815 563,824 700,579 13,357 -
Medicare 425 28,564 11,868 1,355 - -
Other Insurance 27,890 (16,355) 1,151 407 3,314 -
Other program fees - 2,240 - 28,184 -
Program Sales:
Service and Production - 7,000 - - - 13,250
Public Support:
United Way 27,025 - - - - 25,208
Local/County Government 8,000 - - - - -
Donations - 1,943 - - - 1,610
Other public support - 800 - - 2,930 106,296
State of New Hampshire - BDAS - - - - - -
Federal Funding:
Other Federal Grants - - - - - -
PATH - - - - - -
Bureau of Behavioral Health - 28,099 225,000 - - -
Rental Income - - - 2,900 10,416 -
Net (loss) gain on beneficial interest
in Foundation - - - - - -
Other 14 3,015 - - - 316

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $.107308 $10962903 § 823470 § 734167 H.__ 25614 § 146614

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Program fees:

Net client fees

Medicaid

Medicare

Other Insurance

Other program fees
Program Sales:

Service and Production
Public Support:

United Way

Local/County Government

Donations

Other public support

State of New Hampshire - BDAS
Federal Funding:

Other Federal Grants

PATH

Bureau of Behavioral Health
Rental Income
Net {loss) gain on beneficial interest

in Foundation
Other

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC,

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Other
Non-BBH

] -

32,000

141,809

(161)

Total
Programs

$ 315515
7,120,319
236,192
300,591
30,449

33,310

207,131
155,664
257,306
114,156

96,818
37,000
385,689
14,060

5,082

Administration

3,436

(12,666)
54,309

2016
Totals

$ 315515
7,120,319
236,192
300,591
30,449

108,335

207,131
155,664
257,456
129,530

96,818
37,000
389,125
14,060
(12,666}
59,391

2015
Totals

$ 306,052
7,064,373
158,760
263,088
33,813

111,028

217,147
189,707
252,178
86,422
0

95,066
37,001
394,152
31,287

(17.697)
115,031

$ 253632 £9300282 § 130628 §9444910 30337408

See Notes to Financial Statements
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